
If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it in 
another format, please call Pete Martens, Democratic Services Manager 
on 01432 383408 or e-mail pmartens@herefordshire.gov.uk in advance of 
the meeting. 

 

 

 
 
AGENDA 
 
Herefordshire Schools Forum 
 

 

Date: Friday 10 June 2011 

Time: 9.30 am 

Place: Council Chamber,  Brockington,  35 Hafod Road,  
Hereford  HR1 1SH 

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the meeting. 

For any further information please contact: 

Pete Martens, Democratic Services Manager 
Tel: 01432 383408 
Email: pmartens@herefordshire.gov.uk 

 
 

 
 



 

GUIDANCE ON DECLARING PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 
 

There are many instances where a decision on an issue will have an effect on all schools, be it on a pro rata 
basis, and as such members would not declare an interest. Where a decision on an issue ‘uniquely’ affects 
one particular school, at which the member is, for example, an employee of that school, or where the 
employee’s children attend, then it would be appropriate for an interest to be declared. 
 
In considering the declaration of an interest, a Member of the Forum should apply the following test: would a 
member of the public, knowing the facts of the situation, reasonably think that the member might be 
influenced by the interest?  
 
A prejudicial interest would include the situation whereby a proposal uniquely affects either a school at which 
they are a head teacher/governor or which their children attend.  
 
Any member who requires advice/guidance concerning declarations of interest or any other issue concerning 
the Forum should contact the Clerk in the first instance on telephone number 01432 260248. 

 

Agenda for the Meeting of the Herefordshire 
Schools Forum 
  
  
  

Membership Mrs JS Powell                                Primary Headteacher 
 Mr NPJ Griffiths                             Secondary Headteacher 
  

Mr J A Chapman Church of England 
Mr P Burbidge Roman Catholic Church 
Mrs S Catlow-Hawkins Secondary Schools Headteacher 

(Voluntary Aided) 
Mr N O'Neil Secondary Schools  (Community) 
Mrs S Woodrow Secondary Schools 
Dr M Goodman  Secondary Headteachers 
Mr S Pugh Primary Schools Headteacher 

(Community) 
Rev D Hyett Voluntary Aided Primary School 
Mrs J Cecil Primary Schools Headteacher (Voluntary 

Controlled) 
Mr P Box Primary Schools 
Mr S Matthews Primary Headteachers Small Schools 
Ms T Kneale Primary Schools 
Mrs J Baker Secondary School Governor 
Mrs K Rooke Special School Governor 
Mr T Edwards Primary School Governor 
Mrs S Bailey Special Schools 
Mr J Docherty Secondary Schools 
Mrs A Pritchard Teaching Staff Representative 
Mr M Harrisson Teacher Representative 
Mr J Godfrey 14-19 Representative 
Mr A Shaw 14-19 Representatives 
Mrs A Jackson Early Years Representative 
Mrs R Lloyd Early Years 
Mr P Barns Pupil Referral Unit 
Mr J Sheppard Hereford Academies 
  

 
Councillor PD Price Observer 
  

 

  Non Voting 



 
HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL  10 JUNE 2011 

 

 

AGENDA 
 Pages 
  
   
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE     
   
 To receive apologies for absence. 

 
 

   
2. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN     
   
 To elect a Chairman for the ensuing year. 

 
 

   
3. ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIRMAN     
   
 To elect a Vice-Chairman for the ensuing year. 

 
 

   
4. NAMED SUBSTITUTES (IF ANY)     
   
 To receive any details of Members nominated to attend the meeting in place 

of a Member of the Forum. 
 

 

   
5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST     
   
 To receive any declarations of interest by Members in respect of items on 

the Agenda. 
 

 

   
6. CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS     
   
 To receive any announcements from the Chairman. 

 
 

   
7. MINUTES   1 - 12  
   
 To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 2 March 2011. 

 
 

   
8. HEREFORDSHIRE SCHOOLS FORUM MEMBERSHIP   13 - 24  
   
 To consider amendments to the Forum’s Membership. 

 
 

   
9. REPORT OF BUDGET WORKING GROUP - 6 MAY 2011   25 - 30  
   
 To consider the initial discussions of the Budget Working Group on 6th May 

2011 relating to the Dedicated Schools Grant budget for 2012/13.  

 

 

   
10. CONSULTATION ON SCHOOL FUNDING REFORM   31 - 66  
   
 To consider a presentation on the national consultation papers on school 

funding reform and academies’ pre-16 funding.  

 

 

   
11. SCHOOL STRATEGIC GROUP UPDATE   67 - 70  
   
 To note the progress of the Schools Strategic Group. 

 
 
 

 

   



 

 

12. SCHOOLS' CAPITAL INVESTMENT PROGRAMME   71 - 76  
   
 To receive information on capital funding arrangements for 2011/12 and a 

summary of the James Review of capital expenditure in schools.  
 

 

   
13. SCHOOLS LIBRARY SERVICE OFFER 2011/2012   77 - 80  
   
 To update the Schools Forum on the Schools Library Service offer to 

schools 2011/12 with funding arrangements plus information on the new 
cultural offer to schools that will be available in 2012. 
 

 

   
14. REVIEW OF SEN FUNDING   81 - 96  
   
 To highlight the growth within the SEN budgets to the Forum. 

 
 

   
15. UPDATE ON SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENTS   97 - 102  
   
 To receive an update about service level agreements. 

 
 

   
16. FUNDING FOLLOWING THE STUDENT FROM PUPIL REFERRAL UNITS 

(PRUS)   
103 - 106  

   
 To agree on a method to allow ‘funding to follow the student’ when they 

transfer to a different school after being on the roll of a PRU.  
 

 

   
17. STATEMENT OF INTENT  - HEALTH & SAFETY AUDIT OF SCHOOLS   107 - 110  
   
 To advise the Forum of the Herefordshire Council Resilience Team’s intent 

to conduct schools’ Health & Safety audits and inspections with effect from 1 
Sep 2011.   
 

 

   
18. WORK PROGRAMME   111 - 112  
   
 To consider the Forum’s work programme. 

 
 

   
19. LATE ITEMS/ANY OTHER BUSINESS     
   
 To consider any issues raised as either a late item or any other business. 

 
 

   
20. FORTHCOMING MEETINGS     
   
 23 September 1:30 pm 

25 November 1:30 pm 

20 January 9:30 am 

24 February 9:30 

23 March 1:30 

 

   



The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at 
Meetings  
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: - 
 
 
• Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the 

business to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information. 

• Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the 
meeting. 

• Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written 
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to 
six years following a meeting. 

• Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up 
to four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the background papers to a 
report is given at the end of each report).  A background paper is a document on 
which the officer has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available 
to the public. 

• Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all 
Councillors with details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and 
Sub-Committees. 

• Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be 
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated 
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title. 

• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, 
subject to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per 
agenda plus a nominal fee of £1.50 for postage). 

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of 
the Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy 
documents. 

 

 



 

Please Note: 

Agenda and individual reports can be made available in large 
print.  Please contact the officer named on the front cover of this 
agenda in advance of the meeting who will be pleased to deal 
with your request. 

The Council Chamber where the meeting will be held is accessible for 
visitors in wheelchairs, for whom toilets are also available. 

A public telephone is available in the reception area. 
 
 
Public Transport Links 
 
• Public transport access can be gained to Brockington via the service runs 

approximately every 20 minutes from the City bus station at the Tesco store in 
Bewell Street (next to the roundabout junction of Blueschool Street / Victoria Street / 
Edgar Street). 

• The nearest bus stop to Brockington is located in Vineyard Road near to its junction 
with Old Eign Hill.  The return journey can be made from the same bus stop. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
Where possible this agenda is printed on paper made from 100% Post-Consumer waste. De-
inked without bleaching and free from optical brightening agents (OBA). Awarded the 
Nordic Swan for low emissions during production and the Blue Angel environmental label. 

If you have any questions about this agenda, how the Council works or would like more 
information or wish to exercise your rights to access the information described above, 
you may do so either by telephoning the officer named on the front cover of this agenda 
or by visiting in person during office hours (8.45 a.m. - 5.00 p.m. Monday - Thursday 



and 8.45 a.m. - 4.45 p.m. Friday) at the Council Offices, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, 
Hereford. 

 

 
 



 
 

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 
 
 

BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD. 
 
 
 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 
 

 

In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring 
continuously. 

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through the 
nearest available fire exit. 

You should then proceed to Assembly Point A which is located in 
the centre of the car park.  A check will be undertaken to ensure 
that those recorded as present have vacated the building 
following which further instructions will be given. 

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of 
the exits. 

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or returning 
to collect coats or other personal belongings. 

 



AGENDA ITEM 7

1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Tim Brown, Committee Manager (Scrutiny) on  (01432) 260239 

  

$nvlselnx.doc 22/02/10 

MEETING: SCHOOLS FORUM 

DATE: 10 JUNE 2011 

TITLE OF REPORT: HEREFORDSHIRE SCHOOLS FORUM 
MEMBERSHIP  

REPORT BY:  DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Purpose 

To consider amendments to the Forum’s Membership. 

Recommendation 

 THAT: the Forum considers whether it wishes to recommend any changes to its 
membership to the Cabinet Member (Corporate and Education). 

Key Points Summary 

The Forum needs to express a view to the Local Authority on changes to its membership in particular 
to reflect the number of academies within the County.  The various methods of calculation suggest, 
one academy representative from the secondary sector as at present, or the addition of one 
additional academy representative from the secondary sector and reduction of one secondary 
representative from the maintained sector, or the possibility of one academy representative from the 
primary sector and a reduction of one primary representative from the maintained sector, or three 
places for academy representatives on the Forum.  The Forum is asked to express its view to inform 
the Local Authority. 

Alternative Options 

The Membership of the Forum could be varied in a number of ways. 

Reasons for Recommendations 

2 To update the Constitution to reflect the increased number of academies in the County.  

Introduction and Background 

3  The Forum considered its Membership and Constitution in July 2010. The Schools Forum 
(England) Regulations 2010 (the Regulations) came into force on 1 April 2010 and required 

AGENDA ITEM 8

13



that the Forum must appoint a representative from Academies in the area as a full Forum 
member.  At that time there were two academies and it was agreed to include 1 Academy 
Head Teacher or Deputy Head Teacher representative within the Forum’s membership.  With 
effect from 1 June 2011 there are likely to be 10 academies. 

4 In December 2010 the Forum agreed that the Forum’s existing membership continue until the 
end of the financial year with a report on revising the Membership and amending the 
Constitution to be considered in March 2011.   This recognised that the number of schools 
becoming academies would have an impact upon the proportional membership of the Forum.   

5  In March the Forum decided that options for changes to the membership of the Forum should 
be referred to the Primary Schools Forum, Association of Secondary Headteachers and the 
Herefordshire Association of School Governors for further consideration with a report to the 
next meeting and that the Membership of the Forum continue on its current basis until after 
that meeting. 

6  The Primary Schools Forum considers that it is not practical to make a decision on who 
representatives might be until ongoing applications for academy status are completed and 
that the Forum's Annual General Meeting in September, when representatives are normally 
elected would be a more sensible time to do so, if necessary.  The  Association of Secondary 
Headteachers is meeting on 8 June and its views will be reported at the meeting.  No view has 
yet been received from the Association of School Governors. 

Key Considerations 

Membership 

7 The provisions in the Regulations governing membership are appended.   Key points to note 
are:  

• The local authority is responsible for determining the size and composition of their schools 
forum and the forum members’ terms of office. 

• a forum must consist of at least 15 members comprising: (a) schools members elected in 
accordance with Regulation 5; (b) if there are any Academies in the authority's area, at 
least one Academies member elected  or selected in accordance with Regulation 6; and 
(c) non-schools members appointed in accordance with Regulation 7. 

 
• Schools members and Academies members must together comprise at least two thirds of 

the membership of the Forum. 

• Regulation 4 states that, subject to paragraphs (6) to (8) of that Regulation, primary 
schools, secondary schools and Academies must be broadly proportionately represented 
on the forum, having regard to the total number of pupils registered at them.  Regulation 4 
(8) provides that an authority may determine that the number of members representing 
schools in a particular school category must be broadly proportionate  to the total number 
of schools in that category when compared with the total number of schools maintained by 
the authority. 

 
8 As Regulation 4 (5) states that it is subject to paragraphs (6) to (8) of Regulation 4 the first 

step is that a decision needs to be made by the authority as to whether the authority are 
determining that the number of members representing schools in a particular school category 
must be broadly proportionate to the total number of schools in that category when compared 
with the total number of schools maintained by the authority.  

14



 
9 If the authority does not make that determination primary schools, secondary schools and 

Academies must be broadly proportionately represented on the forum, having regard to the 
total number of pupils registered at them.   

 
10 The forecast numbers of pupils registered at Local Authority maintained schools and 

academies at 1 June 2011 is as follows: 
 

  LA Maintained Academies Total 

  
No. of 

Schools 
No. of 
Pupils 

No. of 
Schools 

No. of 
Pupils 

No. of 
Schools 

No. of 
Pupils 

Primary Schools 
                 

76  
       

11,229  
                   
5  

         
1,046  

                
81         12,275  

Secondary Schools 
                   

10  
         

6,331  
                   
4  

         
3,438  

                
14           9,769  

Age 3 - 16 Schools 
                  
-                 -   

                   
1  

           
319  

                  
1             319  

Special 
                   
4             245  

                  
-                 -   

                  
4             245  

 Total 
                 

89  
       

17,805  
                 

10  
         

4,803  
              

100         22,608  
 
 A chart showing the current Membership is also appended.   

11 The implications of achieving broadly proportionate membership based on the current 
membership of the Forum are set out below. 

12 If the authority determines that the number of members representing schools in a particular 
school category must be broadly proportionate to the total number of schools in that category 
when compared with the total number of schools maintained by the authority this would imply 
on one calculation: 

• 28.6% of the Secondary school representatives should be from academies.  Based on 
the current membership provision of 5 Secondary School Head Teacher 
representatives and one academies representative (from the secondary sector) this 
would suggest consideration of one additional secondary academies representative on 
the Forum and one less representative from  the maintained schools.  

• 6.2% of the primary school representatives should be from academies.  This means no 
representation on the Forum from academies within the primary sector. 

13 If the calculation were based on primary, secondary and academies (with no distinction 
between primary and secondary school academies) that would mean approximately 11.6% of 
the places for primary and secondary school representation would fall to an academy.  Based 
on the provision of 6 primary school head teacher representatives and 5 secondary head 
teacher representatives and one academies representative there should be one place for an 
academy representative. 

14 If regard were to be had instead to the number of pupils registered at schools: 

• 35% of the Secondary school representatives should be from academies.  Based on 
the current membership provision of 5 Secondary School Head Teacher 
representatives and one academies representative (from the secondary sector) this 
would suggest one additional secondary academy representative on the Forum and 
one less representative from the maintained schools.  

15



• 8.5% of the primary school representatives should be from academies.  This could 
suggest one representative on the Forum from academies within the primary sector (6 
x 0.085 = 0.51). 

15 If the calculation were based on primary, secondary and academies (with no distinction 
between primary and secondary school academies) that would mean approximately 21.5% of 
the places for primary and secondary school representation would fall to an academy.  Based 
on the provision of 6 primary school head teacher representatives and 5 secondary head 
teacher representatives and one academies representative from the secondary sector this 
would mean three places for academy representatives (12 x  0.215 =2.58). 

16 The Forum is asked for its views to enable the Authority to reach its final decision.   

17 It is proposed that the reviewed Membership take effect from 1 July 2011 and be reviewed 
annually thereafter. 

Community Impact 

18 None 

Financial Implications 

19 None 

Legal Implications 

20 None  

Risk Management 

21 None known. 

Consultees 

22 Primary Schools Forum, Association of Secondary Headteachers and the Herefordshire 
Association of School Governors. 

Appendices 

• Provisions in the Regulations governing membership  

• A chart showing the current Membership of the Forum 

Background Papers 

None 

 

16



17



18



19



20



D
:\m
od
er
ng
ov
\D
at
a\
A
ge
nd
aI
te
m
D
oc
s\
6\
9\
4\
A
I0
00
23
49
6\
$a
jb
bu
rt
w
.d
oc
 

 
M

em
b
er

sh
ip

 C
h
ar

t 
 

R
eq

u
ir

em
en

t 
in

 
R

eg
u
la

ti
o
n
s 

M
em

b
er

sh
ip

 P
ro

vi
si

o
n
 

in
 t
h
e 

C
o
n
st

it
u
ti
o
n
 

A
d
d
it
io

n
al

 n
o
te

 in
 C

o
n
st

it
u
ti
o
n
 

C
u
rr

en
t 
m

em
b
er

 

S
ch

o
o
ls

 M
em

b
er

s 
 

 
 

 R
eg

 5
 2

 (
a)

 
 a

 r
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
e 

of
 a

n 
LA

 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
nu

rs
er

y 
sc

ho
ol

/r
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
es

 
of

 
nu

rs
er

y 
sc

ho
ol

s,
 

w
he

re
 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
an

y 
su

ch
 

sc
ho

ol
s 

in
 t

he
 a

ut
ho

rit
y’

s 
ar

ea
; 

 

1 
S

ch
oo

l w
ith

 a
 N

ur
se

ry
 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

e 
 

 
M

s 
T

 K
ne

al
e 

 

 
b)

 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
es

 
of

 
pr

im
ar

y 
sc

ho
ol

s 
ot

he
r 

th
an

 n
ur

se
ry

 s
ch

oo
ls

; 

6 
P

rim
ar

y 
S

ch
oo

ls
 H

ea
d 

te
ac

he
r 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

es
 

 

A
t 

le
as

t 
1 

pr
im

ar
y 

he
ad

 m
em

be
r 

m
us

t 
re

pr
es

en
t c

om
m

un
ity

 s
ch

oo
ls

 
 

M
r 

S
 P

ug
h 

 

A
t 

le
as

t 
1 

pr
im

ar
y 

he
ad

 m
em

be
r 

m
us

t 
re

pr
es

en
t 

vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
co

nt
ro

lle
d/

vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
ai

de
d/

fo
un

da
tio

n 
sc

ho
ol

s 
 

R
ev

 D
 H

ye
tt 

(v
a)

 
M

rs
 J

 C
ec

il 
(v

c)
 

 

T
he

re
 

m
us

t 
be

 
at

 
le

as
t 

2 
m

em
be

rs
 

re
pr

es
en

tin
g 

a 
sc

ho
ol

 
le

ss
 

th
an

 
10

5 
pu

pi
ls

.  
 

M
r 

S
 M

at
th

ew
s 

 
M

r 
P

 B
ox

  
 

T
he

re
 

m
us

t 
be

 
at

 
le

as
t 

1 
m

em
be

r 
re

pr
es

en
tin

g 
a 

sc
ho

ol
 

m
or

e 
th

an
 

10
5 

pu
pi

ls
. 

 

M
rs

 J
S

 P
ow

el
l 

 

1 
P

rim
ar

y 
S

ch
oo

l 
G

ov
er

no
r 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

e 
 

 
M

r 
T

 E
dw

ar
ds

 

 

21



D
:\m
od
er
ng
ov
\D
at
a\
A
ge
nd
aI
te
m
D
oc
s\
6\
9\
4\
A
I0
00
23
49
6\
$a
jb
bu
rt
w
.d
oc
 

c 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
es

 
of

 
se

co
nd

ar
y 

sc
ho

ol
s 

5 
S

ec
on

da
ry

 S
ch

oo
l 

H
ea

d 
te

ac
he

r 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
es

 
 

A
t 

le
as

t 
1 

se
co

nd
ar

y 
he

ad
 m

em
be

r 
m

us
t 

re
pr

es
en

t c
om

m
un

ity
 s

ch
oo

ls
 

 

M
r 

N
 O

’N
ei

l 
M

rs
 S

 W
oo

dr
ow

 

A
t 

le
as

t 
1 

se
co

nd
ar

y 
he

ad
 m

em
be

r 
m

us
t 

re
pr

es
en

t 
vo

lu
nt

ar
y 

 c
on

tr
ol

le
d/

vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
ai

de
d/

fo
un

da
tio

n 
sc

ho
ol

s 
 

M
rs

 C
at

lo
w

-H
aw

ki
ns

 

A
t 

le
as

t 
1 

he
ad

 
m

us
t 

re
pr

es
en

t 
11

-1
6 

sc
ho

ol
s 

 

D
r 

M
 G

oo
dm

an
 

 

A
t 

le
as

t 
1 

he
ad

 
m

us
t 

re
pr

es
en

t 
11

-1
8 

sc
ho

ol
s 

 

M
r 

N
P

J 
G

rif
fit

hs
  

  
1 

S
ec

on
da

ry
 S

ch
oo

l 
G

ov
er

no
r 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

e 
 

 
M

rs
 J

 B
ak

er
 

 
B

us
in

es
s 

m
an

ag
er

s 
G

ro
up

 R
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
e 

 

 
M

r 
J 

D
oc

he
rt

y 
 

(d
) 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

es
 

of
 

sp
ec

ia
l 

sc
ho

ol
s,

 
w

he
re

 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

an
y 

su
ch

 
sc

ho
ol

s 
in

 t
he

 a
ut

ho
rit

y’
s 

ar
ea

. 

1 
S

pe
ci

al
 S

ch
oo

l H
ea

d 
te

ac
he

r 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
e 

 1 
S

pe
ci

al
 S

ch
oo

l 
G

ov
er

no
r 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

e 
 

 
M

rs
 S

 B
ai

le
y 

   
M

rs
 K

 R
oo

ke
 

1 
P

up
il 

R
ef

er
ra

l U
ni

t 
(P

R
U

) 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
e 

M
r 

P
 B

ar
ns

 

A
ca

d
em

ie
s 

M
em

b
er

s 
R

eg
 6

 a
t l

ea
st

 o
ne

 
A

ca
de

m
ie

s 
m

em
be

r 
 

 
 

M
r 

J 
S

he
pp

ar
d 

N
o
n
-S

ch
o
o
ls

 M
em

b
er

s 
  R

eg
 7

 (
1 

a)
 O

ne
 o

r 
m

or
e 

to
 

re
pr

es
en

t t
he

 lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
14

-1
9 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

 
 

M
r 

J 
G

od
fr

ey
 

M
r 

A
 S

ha
w

 

22



D
:\m
od
er
ng
ov
\D
at
a\
A
ge
nd
aI
te
m
D
oc
s\
6\
9\
4\
A
I0
00
23
49
6\
$a
jb
bu
rt
w
.d
oc
 

R
eg

 7
(1

 b
) 

O
ne

 o
r 

m
or

e 
to

 
re

pr
es

en
t 

ea
rly

 
ye

ar
s 

pr
ov

id
er

s 

 
 

M
rs

 A
 J

ac
ks

on
 

M
rs

 R
 L

lo
yd

 

R
eg

 7
(2

) 
S

ub
je

ct
 to

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 

(3
),

 th
e 

au
th

or
ity

 m
ay

 a
pp

oi
nt

 
ad

di
tio

na
l n

on
-s

ch
oo

ls
 

m
em

be
rs

 to
 th

ei
r 

fo
ru

m
 to

 
re

pr
es

en
t t

he
 in

te
re

st
s 

of
 o

th
er

 
bo

di
es

 

2 
T

ra
de

 U
ni

on
 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

es
 (

1 
P

rim
ar

y 
S

ch
oo

l a
nd

 
1 

S
ec

on
da

ry
 S

ch
oo

l) 
 

 
M

rs
 A

 P
rit

ch
ar

d 
M

r 
M

 H
ar

ris
on

 
  

R
E

g 
7 

(3
) 

th
e 

au
th

or
ity

 m
us

t 
co

ns
id

er
 w

he
th

er
 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
bo

di
es

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 

re
pr

es
en

te
d 

on
 th

ei
r 

fo
ru

m
—

 
(a

) 
th

e 
D

io
ce

sa
n 

B
oa

rd
 o

f 
E

du
ca

tio
n 

fo
r 

an
y 

di
oc

es
e 

an
y 

pa
rt

 o
f w

hi
ch

 is
 s

itu
at

ed
 in

 th
e 

au
th

or
ity

’s
 a

re
a;

 
(b

) 
th

e 
B

is
ho

p 
of

 a
ny

 R
om

an
 

C
at

ho
lic

 D
io

ce
se

 a
ny

 p
ar

t o
f 

w
hi

ch
 is

 s
itu

at
ed

 in
 th

e 
au

th
or

ity
’s

 
ar

ea
; 

(c
) 

w
he

re
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

an
y 

sc
ho

ol
s 

or
 A

ca
de

m
ie

s 
w

ith
in

 
th

e 
au

th
or

ity
’s

 a
re

a 
th

at
 a

re
 

de
si

gn
at

ed
 

un
de

r 
se

ct
io

n 
69

(3
) 

of
 th

e 
A

ct
(1

2)
 a

s 
ha

vi
ng

 a
 r

el
ig

io
us

 
ch

ar
ac

te
r 

(o
th

er
 th

an
 C

hu
rc

h 
of

 
E

ng
la

nd
 o

r 
R

om
an

 C
at

ho
lic

 
sc

ho
ol

s)
, t

he
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 fa

ith
 

gr
ou

p 
in

 r
es

pe
ct

 o
f a

ny
 s

uc
h 

sc
ho

ol
 o

r 
A

ca
de

m
y.

 
 

2 
D

io
ce

sa
n 

R
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
es

 
    

 
M

r 
J 

C
ha

pm
an

 
M

r 
P

 B
ur

bi
dg

e 
    

  

23



24



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Malcolm Green on (01432) 260818 
  

  

MEETING: SCHOOLS FORUM 

DATE: 10 JUNE 2011 

TITLE OF REPORT: REPORT OF BUDGET WORKING GROUP – 6 MAY 
2011 

OFFICER SCHOOLS FINANCE MANAGER 

CLASSIFICATION: Open 

Wards Affected 
County-wide 

Purpose 
To consider the initial discussions of the Budget Working Group on 6th May 2011 relating to the 
Dedicated Schools Grant budget for 2012/13.  

Recommendation(s) 

 THAT Schools Forum notes the initial considerations of the Budget Working 
Party for the 2012/13 Dedicated Schools Grant. 

Key Points Summary 

The report is a summary of the Budget Working Group’s meeting and summarises early budget 
proposals for 2012/13: 

• DSG budget cuts of £1.25m are likely in 12/13 and 13/14 due to a continuing falling rolls 
(£0.5m), increasing costs of SEN (£0.5m) and increases in business rates, insurance and 
Upper Pay scale teacher costs(£0.2m).   

• Potential annual savings up to £1m from charitable rates status could be achieved for schools 
transferring to foundation or academy school status. 

• There is a potential future cost of £0.5m resulting from the withholding of the final Standards 
Fund 10/11 instalment of £0.5m. 

• Proposed budget consultation for schools and PVI nurseries in the autumn. 

• The impact of falling rolls gradually transferring to secondary schools may reduce the budget 
loss from falling rolls over time.  

Alternative Options 

1 There are no alternative options at this stage.  

AGENDA ITEM 9

25



Reasons for Recommendations 

2 To inform Schools Forum of the work of the Budget Working Group of 6thMay 2011. 

Introduction and Background 

3 The Budget Working Group (BWG) met on 6th May to consider initial budget projections for 
the 2012/13 DSG. 

4 Present were: Julie Powell (Lugwardine), Andrew Teale (St Paul’s), Steve Pugh (Hampton 
Dene), Peter Box (Lord Scudamore), Ewan McGilp (St Martin’s), Sue Jones ( Clehonger) Ann 
Pritchard (Trinity)   John Docherty (John Kyrle), Malcolm Green, Louise Devlin, Kathy Roberts. 

5 Apologies were received from Nigel Griffiths (John Kyrle) and Tracey Kneale (Marlbrook). 

6 2012/13 Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) Budget projections 

7 The BWG discussed some key principles (including reducing inequalities, protecting 
vulnerable groups and maximising sustainable funding) that should underpin the budget 
consultations for the 2012/13 DSG budgets. It was agreed that the next BWG on 1st July 
would consider these further and that a paper would be prepared which listed the principles 
that had been used in the 2011/12 budget consultations and the principles that the 
Department for Education (DfE) would be using to develop the national school funding 
formula.  

8 Some initial funding projections were discussed based on the following assumptions; 

DSG Funding -  Per pupil funding rates in DSG are expected to remain static over the 
next two or more years so there will be no or little growth in DSG 
funding over the five year period.  

Falling Rolls -  are expected to transfer from the primary sector to the secondary sector 
during 2012 and are likely to continue at the same 1% reduction each 
year resulting in a net loss of £500k per annum. 

Banded funding -  possible continued to increase by £200k p.a. (based on the growth 
since 2006/07). 

Special Schools - Continued growth in special school places and number of places 
requiring enhanced funding is likely to increase by £300k per annum. 
(This is consistent with a growth of £150k pa since 2000 and inflated to 
2012/13 price base)   

Complex Needs 

Solutions -  (out county placements) is potentially likely to rise by up to £200k per 
year for the DSG share (3/7) over a five year period. 

Other costs -  such as business rates, teachers pay grant, insurance all potentially 
could add further costs of £200k pa. 

Pupil Premium- expected to continue to increase by a further £1m in 12/13 and a further 
£1m in 13/14 and a further £1m in 14/15 (based on national spend of 
£625m in 11/12 rising to £2.5bn in four years – but not confirmed by 

26



DfE).   

9 Hence in broad terms no increase in DSG funding is to be expected, spend on SEN may 
increase by £550k per annum, continued falling rolls may cost £0.5m and other business 
costs to schools a further £02m. DSG planning should therefore assume budget cuts of 
£1.25m pa will be required in 12/13. This is comparable with the budget cuts that were 
required in setting the 11/12 DSG budget – and arise from the same underlying reasons. 

10 Prior to finalising the consultation paper, further work is necessary on the projected pupil 
numbers for 12/13 and the extent to which savings already made in the 11/12 budget and 
protected by the Minimum Funding Guarantee might be realised in 12/13.  It was also 
projected that there would be a similar budget outlook for 13/14 and further savings of around 
£1.25m would be required.     

11 It was agreed that much earlier consultation would be required with schools and PVI nurseries 
in the autumn term and that a draft consultation paper should be considered by Schools 
Forum in September 2011 and would include the key budget principles.  

12 Charitable Rates Relief 

13 An alternative to a repeat of the 11/12 budget cuts was potentially identified in the 80% 
charitable rates relief savings available to foundation and academy schools. Rates paid by 
community schools are £1.1m and a further £0.1m paid by Voluntary Controlled schools. 
Savings in business rates of 80% or up to £960k could be achieved in advance of the 2012/13 
financial year by schools opting for foundation or academy status. There are 49 community 
schools with total business rates of £1.1m however four schools account for £0.5m and a 
further six for the next £0.25m and then a further 16 for the next £0.25m so that savings of 
£800k could be achieved if 26 schools converted to foundation status. 

14 The BWG asked that  a foundation schools conversion programme be taken forward urgently 
with the Director of People’s Services, Legal Services and Property Services in order to 
minimise the budget cuts necessary in 12/13. It was agreed that the one–off legal costs could 
be met by DSG through the recurring savings in business rates.       

15 Mainstreamed Grants Review  

16 The BWG considered details of the component grants that have been mainstreamed into DSG 
and allocated to schools on an amount per pupil basis in 11/12 less the -1.5% cuts agreed as 
part of the 11/12 budget process. 

17 The amount of grant per school ranges as follows; 
 

• Special schools from  £2,400 per pupil to £3,700 per pupil 
• High Schools from £601 per pupil to £1,153 per pupil  
• Primary schools from £360 per pupil to £1,378 per pupil 
 

18 This variation between school grant funding is due to   

• Funding differences in School Development Grant (SDG) including former Excellence 
Cluster and Behaviour Improvement Programme grants, Advanced Skills Teachers, 
Gifted & Talented, training schools, leading edge schools – all of which have been 
absorbed into SDG on a per pupil basis and carried forward year by year according to 
DfE rules ( from approx 2006/07). 

 

27



• Government formulae for the allocation of School Standards Grant and School 
Standards Grant (Personalisation) has in the past included lump sum allocations 
dependent on the size of school and also contains funding allocations in SSG(P) 
based on low attainment. 

 
• Disadvantage Subsidy allocations which were determined by Children and Young 

People’s Directorate through a formula including rurality allocations as well as 
deprivation allocations. 

 
• Extended Schools sustainability – allocation by formula to school partnerships but 

further delegation has been by agreement within each partnership leading to variations 
on a school by school basis. 

• Targeted support for primary and secondary strategies has been allocated to a limited 
number of schools each year – and schools fortunate to receive funding in 10/11 have 
seen this repeated for 11/12. 

 
• Other primary grants for Every Child, lead teacher, early years foundation and primary 

modern languages have all varied according to other criteria. 
 
• One to One tuition allocations have been based on pupils falling behind national 

achievements standards – schools have had to bid for funding. 
 

19 As a first stage in the review, BWG discussed some principles that might guide consideration 
of the actual allocations at a later stage. Such principles included 

• Basic School Development Grant (i.e. excluding deprivation payments) should be the 
same rate per pupil for all schools 

 
• Specialisms continue to be paid at the rate set by the DfE however how do we take 

account of new specialisms or the loss of the High Performing Specialist School 
status? 

 
• The need/use of Advanced Skills Teachers should be reviewed. Funding should be 

reduced when ASTs retire or reduce hours. Schools in receipt of AST funding must 
provide the AST for the one day per week for use by other schools (as per the AST 
guidelines)   

 
• Deprivation allocations should use the existing formula within the funding model (which 

uses a basket of four indicators, number of free school meals, percentage of free 
school meals, number of pupils x the IDACI proportion, low prior attainment ( numbers 
of pupils not achieving KS1 (primary) and KS2 (secondary) )   

 
• Extended schools sustainability should be at a standard rate per pupil – or should 

there be a rurality/small schools supplement? 
 

• Targeted secondary and primary allocations should be allocated at a standard rate per 
pupil for high and primary schools rather than only those schools fortunate  to continue 
to receive their 10/11 allocations 

 
• Universal secondary and primary grants should be at a standard rate per pupil – 

perhaps different rates for primary, secondary and special schools. 
 

28



• Flat rate base allocations (e.g. a standard £1,000 for each school) are to be avoided 
unless there is a definitive reason (approved by Schools Forum?). Such base 
allocations will increase the per pupil variation between schools rather than reduce it. 
For example a standard £1,000 paid to each school is worth £2 per pupil for a large 
primary school and £20 per pupil for a small primary.  

 
• The current variation in funding per pupil between schools is too great and should be 

reduced.  For example (excluding known differences for specialist school status and 
deprivation funding) should the per pupil funding should be the same for each school?  
or within a school phase?  Or is there an acceptable variation e.g. the maximum is 
+50% of the minimum or +100% of the minimum?  Do changes phased in over time?  

 
• Aim for a three year funding equalization plan so that a strategy can be developed and 

the cost on the Minimum Funding Guarantee can be calculated. (Note – any changes 
will need to be affordable within a reducing schools budget). 

 
 

20 The BWG asked that the funding spreadsheet be revised based on the above principles so 
that further consideration can be given to the grants proposal for inclusion in the school 
funding consultation in the autumn. 

21 Standards Fund – Missing £0.5m Instalment 

22 The BWG was informed of the DfE’s decision to withdraw the final payment of the 2010/11 
Standards Fund at a cost of £0.5m and the inclusion of this funding within the previously 
announced 11/12 DSG. Following complaints from local authorities the DfE are intending to 
issue further guidance during the summer however DfE are continuing to state that no 
additional cash will be made available and is expecting local authorities to find the funding 
from either DSG under spends or by borrowing against future year’s DSG. DfE is adamant 
that school budgets should not be cut to recover the money.  

23 Realistically there seems to be little alternative but to take the missing funding from DSG over 
the next two or three years supplemented by any underspends in standards fund and DSG. 
However using DSG underspend to meet the £0.5m shortfall is effectively still a budget cut. 

24 Further details will be brought to Schools Forum in September when further advice has been 
received from the DFE and the final outturns for DSG and Standards Fund are known.  

25 Academy Recoupment 

26 The BWG was informed of the DfE’s methodology for 2011/12 for top-slicing DSG for 
academies. A national top-slice of local authorities budgets has been applied in 11/12 at a 
cost to Herefordshire of £650k. Academies receive a pro-rata share (based on pupil numbers) 
of DSG budgets for Behaviour Support services,14-16 practical learning options, support to 
under-performing ethnic minority groups, school meals, free meals eligibility, milk, kitchen 
repairs, retained library services, licences, miscellaneous, staff costs for trade union facilities, 
long term sickness, termination of employment costs and other specific grants. In addition, a 
nationally set £8 per pupil is deducted for the transfer of admissions responsibilities. 

27 For 2011/12 DfE have excluded from the calculations SEN support services so that there is 
now no top-slice for SEN services such as hearing impaired, visual impaired and 
home/hospital services. For Herefordshire this will make a significant reduction to the top-
slice, for example reducing the top-slice from £70,000 to £3,000 for a high school academy.   

28 Budgets for trade union facilities and other central budgets such as the support for the music 

29



service are subject to the academy top-slice rules and academies will have to be recharged 
for these services to maintain the budget allocated by Schools Forum. 

29 The DfE is consulting on academy recoupment for 12/13 so the rules may yet change again.   

Key Considerations 

30 The discussions at the BWG represent early considerations of the 2012/13 DSG budget and 
more work will be required by the BWG and Schools Forum.  

Community Impact 

31 None assessed 

Financial Implications 

32 The financial implications of the 2012/13 Schools Budget form a significant part of the work of 
the BWG this year.  

Legal Implications 

33 These proposals comply with the Council’s legal duties. 

Risk Management 

34 The BWG’s proposals for the 2012/13 budget will be fully considered by Schools Forum prior 
to final decisions by the Cabinet Member in March 2012. Schools and PVI nurseries will be 
consulted for their views in autumn 2011.   

Consultees 

35 There is a statutory requirement that Schools Forum is consulted on proposed changes to 
DSG funded budgets.  

Appendices 

36 None 

Background Papers 

37 Agenda papers considered by the BWG on 6th May 2011. 

30



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Malcolm Green on (01432) 260818 
  

  

MEETING: SCHOOLS FORUM 

DATE: 10 JUNE 2011 

TITLE OF REPORT: CONSULTATION ON SCHOOL FUNDING REFORM 

OFFICER SCHOOLS FINANCE MANAGER 

CLASSIFICATION: Open 

Wards Affected 
County-wide 

Purpose 
To consider a presentation on the national consultation papers on school funding reform and 
academies’ pre-16 funding.  

  

Recommendation 

THAT Schools Forum notes both consultation papers and considers the possible future 
implications for schools in Herefordshire. 

Key Points Summary 

A summary of key points arsing from the consultation papers and the Department for 
Education (DfE) presentations from Birmingham on the11th May will be presented to Schools 
Forum on 10th June.   

Alternative Options 

1 There are no alternative options at this stage as the consultation papers are mainly concerned 
with principles; options will follow in further consultation.  

Reasons for Recommendations 

2 To inform Schools Forum of the national consultation papers on school funding reform. 

Introduction and Background 

3 In the White Paper “The Importance of Teaching” the Government set out its view that the 
current school funding system is opaque, full of anomalies and unfair and therefore in need of 
reform. The Government agreed to consultation the merits of moving from the current funding 
system to a national funding system, including the right time to begin the transition to a 
formula, the transitional arrangements necessary to ensure schools and local authorities do 
not suffer undue turbulence and the factors necessary to assess the needs of pupils for 
funding purposes.   

AGENDA ITEM 10

31



4 The document “A consultation on school funding reform: Rationale and principles” – attached 
as Appendix 1 represents the first stage in that consultation and will be followed by further 
proposal later in the summer. 

5 The DfE considers that the current system for funding academies is over complicated and 
needs reform because the process is not transparent, it does not quickly reflect local 
circumstances, there is a risk of error during the replication process, becomes more difficult 
with an increasing number of Academies, its not sustainable and is not administratively 
efficient. The DfE has published more detailed interim proposals for the funding of Academies 
alongside this consultation – attached as Appendix 2 “ Academies’ pre-16 funding: Options for 
the 2012/13 academic year”.  

6 Julie Powell, Schools Forum Chairman and Malcolm Green, Schools Finance Manager 
attended the national schools fair funding conference in Birmingham on 11th May as the 
proposals for change to the school funding system was the main theme of the conference.. 
Speakers from the school funding and academies funding teams presented the DfE’s 
proposals in greater detail than set out in the consultation papers.    

7 Because the copies of the DfE presentations are not available at the time of writing this report 
a separate presentation will be made to Schools Forum on 10th June. 

Key Considerations 

8 The outcome of the DfE consultation will have a significant impact on school funding in 
Herefordshire and it is important that Schools Forum is well informed of the potential changes.  

9 The DfE’s view is that an ideal school funding system should have certain key characteristics 
as follows; 

a. Distributes money in a fair and logical way 

b. Distributes extra resources towards pupils who need them most 

c. Is transparent and easy to explain 

d. Supports a diverse range of school provision 

e. Provides value for money and ensures proper use of public funds 

10. The current school funding system has up until now paid money to local authorities for 
schools through a number of different grants. The largest of these is Dedicated Schools Grant 
(DSG). The amount of DSG per pupil for each authority is calculated based on what the local 
authority received the previous year which in turn is based on funding in 2005/06 plus locked 
in historic decisions on spending including subsequent additional funding for ministerial 
priorities. This method is called “spend plus”. 

11. So, current levels of school funding are based on an assessment of needs which is out of 
date, and on historic decisions about levels of funding which may or may not reflect precisely 
what schools needed then. It is inevitable that over time needs have changed and historic 
local decisions may no longer reflect local or national priorities. 

12. This system falls wells short of the ideal characteristics set out above, in particular it is; 

a. Opaque and extremely complex 

32



b. Unfair as it leads to schools with similar intakes receiving very different levels of 
funding 

c. Fails to reflect need accurately 

d. Does not support the new school system 

13.  All these problems with the current school funding system are set out in some detail in Annex 
2 (pages 14-21) of the Rationale and principles consultation paper on school funding reform. 

Community Impact 

14. None yet assessed 

Financial Implications 

15 It is still too early know whether there will be any implications for the 2012/13 Schools Budget 
as the detailed schools settlement and the outcome of all the consultations will only be 
available from DfE in late November/early December.  

Legal Implications 

16  None at this stage. 

Risk Management 

17 Schools Forum and the Budget Working Group will have further opportunities to consider the 
DfE consultation papers and the implications prior to the recommending a final budget in 
March 2012.  The risks in moving to a national school funding formula will be analysed in 
detail when the second DfE consultation paper is published. Clearly it is possible that 
Herefordshire schools may gain or lose funding and this will depend on the precise make-up 
of the proposed national funding formula and any protection arrangements that may be 
phased in nationally.  

Consultees                       

18 None at this stage.                                   

Appendices 

1.  “A consultation on school funding reform: Rationale and principles”           

2.  “Academies’ pre-16 funding: Options for the 2012/13 academic year”              `                                                            

Background Papers 

None 

33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Kathy Roberts, Assistant Director: Improvement & Inclusion on (01432) 260804 
  

$nba2gg0d.doc 22/02/10 

MEETING: SCHOOLS FORUM 

DATE: 10 JUNE 2011 

TITLE OF REPORT: SCHOOL STRATEGIC GROUP- UPDATE 

REPORT BY:  ASSISTANT DIRECTOR: IMPROVEMENT & 
INCLUSION 

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

Wards Affected 

County-wide. 

Purpose 

For information. 

Recommendation 

 THAT: 

 the progress of the Schools Strategic Group is noted 

Key Points Summary 

• The Schools Strategic Group was an initiative of the then Interim Director of Children’s Services 
(May 2010 – February 2011) and Assistant Director: Improvement & Inclusion. 

• The purpose of the group was to: To provide a forum for debate and discussion, enable all 
schools and settings to maintain close and effective working links, to provide a clear process for 
communication, maximise the positive impact of all schools and services in their delivery of 
excellence for all children and young people and to stimulate forward thinking. 

• The group have met on two occasions and both meetings have been well attended. 

Alternative Options 

1 There are no alternative options. 

Reasons for Recommendations 

2 There are no recommendations- report for information only. 

Introduction and Background 

3 Membership of the group includes: 

AGENDA ITEM 11

67



Interim Director for People’s Services  

Assistant Director: Planning, Performance and Development  

Assistant Director: Community Operations  

Assistant Director: Improvement and Inclusion  

Assistant Director: Safeguarding and Vulnerable Children  
 
Kington Primary School 

St Paul’s C E Primary School 

St Martins Primary School 

Lord Scudamore School 

Peterchurch Primary School 

Staunton on Wye Endowed Primary School 

The Bishop of Hereford’s Bluecoat School 

Weobley High School 

Kingstone High School 

St Mary’s High School 

Weobley High School 
 
Barrs Court School 

Hereford College of Technology 

Director of Education, Hereford Diocese 
 
Archdiocese of Cardiff Commission for Schools and Colleges 
 
Chair of Herefordshire Association of Governors 
 
Governor 
 
 

68



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Kathy Roberts, Assistant Director: Improvement & Inclusion on (01432) 260804 
  

$nba2gg0d.doc 22/02/10 

4 The group have held two meetings on 10 March 2011 and 5 May 2011. Topics addressed in 
these meetings were the purpose of the group and desired outcomes, the rising to the 
challenge programme and the new structural model for schools- sharing the approach taken 
by the CE Diocese. 

5 Purpose of the Schools Strategic Planning Group, as agreed and signed off at the second 
meeting: 

 
• The development of an agreed local framework for the new models of school organisation to 

improve quality and outcomes for children and young people 
 

• To contribute to the debate about the strategic investment plan for the Dedicated Schools 
Grant 
 

• Understanding and shaping health and social care support with the new commissioning, new 
providers and localities arrangement.  
 

• Understanding and communicating the role of the Local Authority.  
 

6 On 5 May the Group considered the Rising to the Challenge programme. And the following 
were identified as areas for action: 

• Customer Focus – Develop a (part of the) customer organisation that is focused on the 
needs of corporate ‘customers’ – including schools – we need to work together both as 
partners in service delivery and as providers of services such as HR, procurement, etc 

• Communities First – Schools to develop their role as ‘hubs’ to promote locality based 
partnerships and improve local communities 

• Empowering special schools to act as hubs for all disability related services and 
developing a trans-disciplinary workforce with common career development 

• Schools as signposters to other service providers with guidance clarifying need 
• Streamlining the Business / Better Services – Improving the way we commission – schools 

and colleges learning from each other, working with Herefordshire Public Services, and 
sharing framework (and other) arrangements: 

• Driving discounts through collaboration 
• Driving down the cost of insurance 
• Hot school meals 
• Transport 

Better Services – Developing a collaborative approach to dealing with surplus places 

7 Phillip Snell, Director of Education, Hereford Diocese also attended the 5 May meeting and 
presented on the Diocesan approach and considerations regarding academy status. 

Key Considerations 

8 Report for information only.   

69



Community Impact 

9 The Schools Strategic Group will maximise the positive impact of all schools and services in 
their delivery of excellence for all children and young people and stimulate forward thinking 
and planning to inform future developments on local, regional and national issues. 

Financial Implications 

10 No financial implications have been identified, although the emphasis is on achieving better 
value for money and better outcomes in an environment of reducing budgets. 

Legal Implications 

11 No legal implications have been identified. 

Risk Management 

12 No risks have been identified. 

Consultees 

13 None 

Appendices 

14 None 

Background Papers 

15 Minutes of Schools Strategic Meeting on 10 March 2011. 

70



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Rob Reid, Head of Access & Capital Commissioning, People’s Directorate, on (01432) 260920 

MEETING: SCHOOLS FORUM 

DATE: 10 JUNE 2011 

TITLE OF REPORT: SCHOOLS’ CAPITAL INVESTMENT PROGRAMME 

REPORT BY:  HEAD OF ACCESS & CAPITAL, 

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Purpose 

To receive information on capital funding arrangements for 2011/12 and a summary of the James 
Review of capital expenditure in schools.  

Recommendation 

THAT Committee note and comment on the report as part of its advisory function. 

Key Points Summary 

• The 2011/12 capital allocations for Herefordshire show an 80% decrease in schools’ devolved 
formula capital allocations.  Although, in part, this is due to the Government allocating the bulk 
of capital maintenance grant to the Local Authority, rather than to schools, the overall capital 
allocation for 2011/12 is about £1.4 million below the 2010/11 allocation. 

• The James Review was commissioned by the Department of Education (DfE) to ensure that 
future capital investment will provide good value for money and will support the 
Government’s ambitions to reduce the deficit, raise standards, tackle disadvantage, 
address building condition and meet the requirement for school places in areas 
experiencing an increase in the birth rate. The key recommendations include: 

o Determining capital allocation using objective information on the need for pupil places 
and on the condition of the local school estate.  

o Procuring and managing larger projects through a “central body” set up by the DfE.  

o The central body putting in place a small number of new national procurement 
contracts for building projects.  

o Developing a standardised suite of drawings and specifications that can be applied 
across a range of projects for new buildings.  

o Utilising a fast-track approach to procurement to reduce the time and cost burden for 
bidders and the client.  

AGENDA ITEM 12

71



o Making responsible bodies (usually the local authority, diocesan bodies and academy 
trusts) accountable for maintenance of facilities with clear parameters set for the 
standard of maintenance required. 

• The government is determining its response to the James Review which is expected later this 
summer.  Herefordshire will implement any changes within the national context, but is well 
placed to involve schools through the Capital Strategy Consultative Group, which has school 
representation and has already influenced the use of the primary capital strategy grant for 
2010/11. 

Alternative Options 

1 This report is for information and therefore alternatives are not provided.  

Reasons for Recommendations 

2 To provide sufficient information and opportunity for Schools Forum to comment on and to 
make recommendations on the 2011/12 capital programme arrangements for schools.  

Introduction and Background 

3 This report is to provide information on the key areas of progress and challenge within the 
capital programme for 2011/12 and to provide a summary of the James Review of capital 
expenditure in schools.    

Key Considerations 

Capital funding grants 2011/12 

4 On 13 December 2010, the Secretary of State announced details of allocation of over £2 
billion of capital funding for 2011-12 to schools and local authorities. 

5 The announcement included details of allocation of: 

• £800 million of basic need funding to local authorities to provide school places where needed 
in their area, in all categories of taxpayer-funded schools  

• £858 million of maintenance capital to local authorities to support the needs of the schools 
that they maintain and for the Sure Start children’s centres in their area  

• £196 million of locally-coordinated Voluntary Aided schools programme capital to support the 
maintenance capital needs of voluntary-aided schools  

• £185 million of devolved formula capital for schools.  

• £800 million basic need funding has been allocated according to relative need for new places, 
based on forecast data provided by all authorities. All taxpayer-funded schools within each 
local authority will be eligible for this funding, including voluntary-aided schools, open 
academies, and new Free Schools where they address basic need pressures. 

6 The proportion of the funding available for capital maintenance which has been allocated to 
each authority has been determined by school and weighted pupil numbers from the most 
recent data available. The voluntary-aided sector has been allocated a fair share based on 
pupil numbers, and reflecting the governors’ 10 per cent contribution and eligibility for VAT. 

72



Allocations have been abated where schools have been or are about to be modernized 
through Building Schools for the Future or PFI projects. 

7 £185 million devolved formula capital funding has been allocated direct to all taxpayer-funded 
schools based on a national formula of £4,000 per school and a per pupil sum which is 
weighted for the type of pupil: £11.25 (primary), £16.875 (secondary), £33.75 (SEN).  This is a 
much lower rate than previously.  For most schools, devolved formula capital has reduced by 
80% on previous years’ funding levels.  The Audit Commission criticised the allocation of large 
amounts of funding to schools that was not targeted to building need. Therefore, in view of the 
need to prioritise, the Government has balanced the bulk of maintenance funding to local 
authorities, to support local priorities and larger projects, with coordinated and efficient 
procurement.  

8 All these programmes will be delivered as capital grant. 

9 Allocations for 2012/13 until 2014/15 will be informed by the outcome of the James Review of 
Capital Expenditure in Schools.  While the allocation and management for these programmes 
may change to reflect the recommendations of the review, it is expected that the funding 
available for basic need and capital maintenance of schools will be roughly in line with the 
funding for 2011/12. 

 Herefordshire Local Authority allocations – 2011/12 

Grant 

Indicative allocation 
2011/12 

 (£000) 

2010/11 allocation for 
comparison 

(£000) 

Difference 

 (£000) 

Basic Need 2,154 458 1,696 

Capital Maintenance 
– Local Authority 

Maintained Schools 2,696 1,949 747 

Capital Maintenance 
– Locally Co-

ordinated Voluntary 
Aided Schools 

Programme 907 1,032 (125) 

Schools Access 
Initiative 0 286 (286) 

Devolved Formula 
Capital 679 3,589 (2,910) 

Harnessing 
Technology 

(Devolved to 
schools) 0 545 (545) 

Total 6,436 7,859 (1,423) 

 

73



10 The Local Authority is working with schools, through the Capital Strategy Consultative Group 
(established as part of Children & Young People’s Capital Strategy) to allocate Basic Need 
and Capital Maintenance funding, using the CYPD Capital Strategy format and assessment 
tool.  This approach was used successfully to allocate the ‘match funding’ element of the 
primary strategy capital money in 2010/11 and involves school phase representation and 
Archdiocese and Diocesan representatives. 

James Review of capital expenditure in schools 

11 The James review was published in early April 2011.  Led by Sebastian James (a director at 
electrical retailer Dixons) the review panel was tasked with considering the Department for 
Education’s (DfE) existing capital expenditure and making recommendations for future 
delivery models for capital investment in schools.  

12 The review of Building Schools for the Future (BSF) identified evidence of poorly defined 
goals, allocation of funds based on inappropriate criteria, weaknesses caused by the lack of 
an “expert client” and a cumbersome and bureaucratic procurement process.  While it is 
important not to lose sight of the fact that there were some success stories in BSF, including 
Herefordshire’s Earl Mortimer College and, through the Academies programme, The Hereford 
Academy, which will open its doors to students in September, the review’s core sentiment is 
that reform is necessary to achieve value for money and fit-for-purpose school buildings in the 
new financial landscape. 

Summary of recommendations 

13 The review’s key recommendations include: 

• Determining capital allocation using objective information on the need for pupil places 
and on the condition of the local school estate.  

• Procuring and managing larger projects through a “central body” set up by the DfE.  

• The central body putting in place a small number of new national procurement 
contracts for building projects.  

• Developing a standardised suite of drawings and specifications that can be applied 
across a range of projects for new buildings.  

• Utilising a fast-track approach to procurement to reduce the time and cost burden for 
bidders and the client.  

• Making responsible bodies (usually the local authority, diocesan bodies and academy 
trusts) accountable for maintenance of facilities with clear parameters set for the 
standard of maintenance required.  

14 Some of the review’s recommendations are likely to be subject to further consultation but 
there is a strong sense that they will largely be adopted by the government.  Its initial 
response is expected later this school.  

15 If adopted by Government, work will be required to turn the review’s recommendations into a 
workable model.  The success of the model is heavily dependent on the new central body, but 
its exact role and structure remain uncertain. The expectation is that Partnerships for 
Schools (PFS), the organisation responsible for delivery of BSF, will form the core of the new 
body. 

74



16 Local authorities will see the biggest change, with their direct involvement in procurement and 
contract management of major schemes changing to one of engagement and local influence. 
Instead of the government providing money for new buildings, it will provide the building itself, 
procured through the new central body. The review believes that centrally procured national 
contracts will offer the best approach to achieving a streamlined procurement process.  

17 The review envisages that local capital expenditure needs will be established through 
investment plans agreed locally and approved centrally. These are to be co-ordinated by local 
authorities. The review envisages these investment plans balancing the needs of all schools 
(including academies and free schools), not just local authority-maintained schools. 

18 The detail is yet to be developed, but whatever criteria are set by Government to assess 
capital expenditure needs, they must be clear if they are to facilitate local agreement on 
priorities from competing interests. 

19 Contractors will welcome moves to streamline the procurement process and larger contractors 
will feel confident of making it on to the new national contracts.  However, if these 
contracts are procured on a national basis, this will cause concern for those (including the 
government) who want to ensure that small and medium enterprises are given a full 
opportunity to bid for and win public sector work. 

20 The review makes clear that the procurement should be structured to allow small and medium 
enterprises to bid successfully but further detail is required to see how this would be achieved. 

21 From an individual school and academy perspective, the centralised approach and increased 
standardisation will mean accepting less direct influence in the end design of their school. 
Ultimately a school or academy may consider that a basic building in good condition is better 
than a crumbling building or no building at all. 

22 The review leaves the door open for some direct local procurement.  Local authorities (and 
other responsible bodies, like academy trusts and charitable foundations) could “earn the 
ability to procure autonomously based on their proven delivery capability”. However, there is 
no detail at this stage on what criteria would be applied to earn this right. 

23 The review refers to larger projects being procured centrally but does not recommend a 
threshold for deciding which projects fall into this category. Further detail is required on where 
the threshold will be set to strike the balance between the benefits of central procurement and 
the requirement for swift local action to meet a particular need.  

24 Time will tell whether the changes that flow from this review will deliver what they seem to 
promise. Much depends on their implementation. At this stage, there are many more 
questions to be answered but the scale of the shift in culture and approach these 
recommendations herald should not be underestimated. 

25 Herefordshire will take the Government’s response to the James Review to the Schools 
Strategic Group, and make the most of the new organisational arrangements of Herefordshire 
Public Services, including any proposals regarding the delivery of property functions as part of 
the organisation’s Rising to the Challenge programme. 

Community Impact 

26 The capital investment programme of the People’s Directorate, including schools and early 
years settings, has wide ranging community impacts, benefiting children and young people 
and their families across Herefordshire. 

75



Financial Implications 

27 These are contained in the body of the report   

Legal Implications 

28 The use of capital funding including grants must comply with the legal requirements 
associated with each funding stream and the conditions of specific grants  

Risk Management 

29 The risks are set out in the body of the report.  

Consultees 

30 None applicable.   

Appendices 

31 None.  

Background Papers 

• None identified. 

76



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Sarah Chedgzoy/Julia Radburn, Principal Officer Outreach & Access (01432) 260731 
  

  

MEETING: SCHOOLS FORUM 

DATE: 10 JUNE 2011 

TITLE OF REPORT: SCHOOLS LIBRARY SERVICE OFFER 2011/12 

REPORT BY:  Principal Officer Outreach and Access 

 

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Purpose 

To update the Schools Forum on the Schools Library Service (SLS) offer to schools 2011/12 with 
funding arrangements plus information on the new cultural offer to schools that will be available in 
2012. 

Recommendation 

 THAT: 

Schools Forum revises the scheme of delegation for Schools Library Service 
(SLS) so that the funding arrangement is in line with that for other services for 
2011/12. 

Key Points Summary 

• The Schools Library Service (SLS) recognises the financial pressures faced by schools and 
by making savings in the service has revised its charges for 2011/12 to offer a competitive 
price, a wider choice of options and a discount scheme to help schools buy their own books 

• From March 2012 SLS will be part of a new cultural offer to schools encompassing Libraries, 
Heritage, Arts and Archives. This will be a traded service 

• For the interim period 2011/12 SLS needs sufficient income in order to continue operating and 
to make the transition to the new service 

• The interim Director for People’s Services and the Director for Places and Communities have 
agreed that for 2011/12 schools should be able to use money delegated to them in line with 
the general scheme of delegation, and not be held to the current wording of Herefordshire’s 
scheme of delegation 

Alternative Options 

1  The alternative option is that the funding arrangement for SLS continues for 2011/12.  There 

AGENDA ITEM 13

77



is a risk that without sufficient funding this year SLS would not be able to operate for the 
schools that do wish to purchase the service and it would have an impact on the new cultural 
offer. However, this option would prove untenable in terms of the requirements and ethos of 
locally managed schools and the scheme of delegation.  A number of schools have raised the 
issue of the current wording of the scheme of delegation, and the application of this current 
scheme for SLS as being a disincentive to buy the service.  

Reasons for Recommendations 

2 The recommendation gives schools the freedom to use delegated money to purchase a range 
of services, in line with all other service areas. 

Introduction and Background 

3  The Schools Library Service (SLS) supplies a range of resources, events, expertise and 
training to support the curriculum, children’s literacy and CPD for staff in school. Since 2000 
the funding has been delegated and earmarked for primary and special schools. This 
arrangement was reviewed at the request of the Schools Forum in 2008/9 with the result that 
the majority of the schools responding opted for the status quo. However, changes to school 
organisation and funding mean that the arrangement needs reviewing again.  

 From 2012 SLS will be part of a wider cultural offer to schools that will include Libraries, 
Heritage, Arts and Archives. This new offer will be a traded, subscription service.  

Key Considerations 

4 The Schools Library Service (SLS) recognises the financial pressures faced by schools and 
by making savings in the service has revised its charges for 2011/12 to offer a competitive 
price, a wider choice of options and a discount scheme to help schools buy their own books.  

At the same time the SLS needs a guaranteed level of income to be able to continue 
operating until the new cultural offer is available. SLS also has a commitment to the schools 
that have already signed up for 2011. It is currently engaged in existing programmes with 
schools i.e. book groups, 2011 Carnegie/Greenaway shadowing; schools are ordering 
resources for this year and advisory work is in progress with schools who are working on their 
libraries. 

It has always been the intention that this service would be offered as a traded service from 
2012 as part of a wider cultural offer and work on this offer started in 2010 in consultation with 
schools. 

 

Community Impact 

5 The recent consultation demonstrated that the value to schools of SLS falls in the following 
areas:  

• Professional expertise to support the school library and pupil’s use of it, disseminating best 
practice and offering CPD for school staff 

• Supporting learning across the whole curriculum and being responsive to the needs of 
individual schools e.g. bespoke project collections 

78



• Giving rural schools access to a range of resources by taking them to the school 

• Enriching literacy and reading with resources and events 

Financial Implications 

6 SLS will be part of the new cultural offer that will have its own charges. During the next 6 
months the content of the new offer, costs and staffing will be completed. However, SLS does 
require a high degree of buy back this financial year to allow the transition to be made to the 
new service.  

Legal Implications 

7 None, this is a local decision for the Schools Forum. 

Risk Management 

8 There is a financial risk if sufficient funding is not generated by buy back in 2011/12.  By 
making savings within the service and offering a competitive price to schools then schools will be able 
to purchase SLS to support their needs and have funding for their own resources. SLS is also 
offering a discount book purchase scheme for schools that sign up. 

A decision has to be made on the future of the schools mobile library vehicle in 2011. This has now 
come to the end of its lease and will either be purchased or re leased as there is no funding to 
purchase a new vehicle. Purchase of the existing vehicle will be the most cost effective option. 
Consultation with schools in 2009 demonstrated that was a highly valued part of the service and will 
be included in the new cultural offer. Sufficient income in 2011/12 will allow SLS to purchase the 
vehicle and achieve further financial savings in the future. 

There is a risk that the new cultural offer could be weakened and less effective if a key element is 
lost. This would result in the continuation of a fragmented offer to schools that the consultation 
process has identified as a barrier to schools being able to make the most of the opportunities offered 
by Libraries, Heritage, Arts and Archives at a cost effective price. A risk assessment is being 
completed for the project. 

 

Consultees 

 9   A number of schools were consulted as part of the development process for the new cultural 
offer. The feedback has been used to inform the framework of the new offer and the school 
consultation has resulted in the new joined up approach to a cultural offer that incorporates a 
number of services. Schools will be consulted in the summer term about the content of the 
new offer.  

 

Appendices 

10 None 

Background Papers 

• None identified 

79



 

80



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Les Knight – Head of Additional Needs on (01432) 261724 (lknight1@herefordshire.gov.uk)  
  

  

MEETING: SCHOOLS FORUM 

DATE: 10 JUNE 2011 

TITLE OF REPORT: REVIEW OF SEN FUNDING  

REPORT BY:  Head of Additional Needs  

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Purpose 

To highlight the growth in the SEN budgets to the Schools Forum. 

To present a series of options for the funding of SEN pupils in mainstream schools from which a 
number can be selected to be taken forward for full consultation with a view to continuing to meet 
pupil needs enabling schools to better manage their resources and reducing the pressure on DSG. 

.  

Recommendation 

 THAT Schools Forum: 

(a) selects one or more of the options presented for detailed and full consultation 
including option 1 for secondary schools and option 2 for primary schools. 

(b) notes the growth in the expenditure on special school places and considers 
whether further action is appropriate. 

(c) notes the action being taken to address the growth in the Complex Needs 
Solutions budget. 

Key Points Summary 

• The cost of providing for pupils with SEN has risen from £4.3m in 2000/1 to £7.9m in 2010/11. 
This represents an 85% real terms increase (after inflation adjustments) in a 10 year period.  
In 2000/1, 3.4% of the overall education budget was SEN expenditure.  In 2010/11, this has 
grown to 5.0%.  There are a number of contributory factors to these increases. 

• Any increases in the amount of funding for SEN is top-sliced from DSG.  This means that the 
general formula allocations to schools are reduced accordingly to meet the rising SEN costs.  
If the option to maintain the current system is chosen (option 4), it is important that the Forum 
recognises the consequences of doing so.  

AGENDA ITEM 14

81



 2

• The number of requests for Band 3 and Band 4 funding without statements has grown 
dramatically.  There is no indication at the present time that the number of requests is likely to 
reduce.  The numbers of Band 3 and 4 awards written into statements through the statutory 
assessment process has also increased significantly. 

71

46

78

50

131

81

0

50

100

150

2008-2009 2009-2010 2010-2011

Number of Banded Funding 
Applications and Allocations Number of

Applications

Number of
Allocations

 

There has been a 67.9% increase in the number of applications in 2010-
2011 over the same period in 2009-2010 whilst the number of allocations 
during this period has risen by 62%.    

 

• Taken together, the increase in expenditure on banded funding (or the historical equivalent) 
has increased from £2.3m in 2000/1 to £3.4m in 2010/11.  –( Adjusted for inflation)  

• Unlike most other LAs that use a banding mechanism, Herefordshire offers the full amount of 
funding, i.e. it includes the Band 1 and 2 amounts in addition to the Band 3 or Band 4 amount.  
In other areas this is simply the top-up amount with the Band 1 and 2 amounts being already 
delegated.  This increases the perverse incentive to apply for funding. 

• The present system of distributing SEN funding to schools via the banded funding mechanism 
does not always command the confidence of a range of stakeholders. 

• There has been a growth in the expenditure and number of places required for pupils 
attending special schools which again places additional pressure on DSG.  The budget has 
increased from £1.5m in 2000 to £3.0m in 2011(adjusted for inflation).  

• There has been a significant increase in the expenditure on the DSG contribution to the 
Complex Needs Solutions Panel rising from £500k in 2000/1 to nearly £1.5m in 2010/11 
(Adjusted for inflation). This increase only represents 3/7th of the actual increase with the other 
contributions coming from other budgets.  

Alternative Options (for delegating funding to mainstream schools) 

1. Each of the following options could be selected for detailed modelling and full consultation.  It 
is possible to separate primary school funding from secondary or to apply different models to 
different sizes of school. 

Option 1 - Delegate all of the banded funding to schools via the same formula as is currently 

82



 3

used for Bands 1 and 2 

 Advantages:   

(i) Transparency – all schools can see what others are receiving from the start 

(ii) Removes the bureaucracy of the application process and the need for a panel 

(iii) Removes the need to use specialist services to verify levels of need 

(iv) Limits the growth of the banded funding total to a pre-determined level 

(v) Decision-making is as close to the pupil as possible which makes its use highly flexible if 
pupil needs change 

(vi) Removes any perverse incentive to apply for funding 

Disadvantages:   

(i) There is a risk factor for small schools if pupils with higher levels of need arrive. 

(ii) It is formula driven and so is a proxy measure of need rather than reflecting actual need 

(iii) Removes the ‘external view’ to verify the level of resourcing for each pupil.  The accuracy       
of the matching of need to resource depends upon the level of SEN knowledge within the 
school. 

(iv) Budgetary pressures in a school might mean that delegated funding for SEN is diverted to 
cover general staffing or other pressures.  Accountability for delegated SEN funding is more 
difficult than where it is attributed for use with individual pupils. 

(v) Might result in greater pressure for statements 

 

Option 2 - Delegate all funding except a small top up amount for Band 4 

Advantages:   

(i) Provides some limited protection for small schools in relation to the most complex pupils 

(ii) Reasonably Transparent – all schools can see what the majority of others are receiving 
from the start and there would be a single banded funding boundary at a very high threshold 
for each type of need. 

(ii) Removes much of the bureaucracy of the application process 

(iii) Removes the need to use specialist services to verify levels of need because children of 
this level of need should already be well known to services 

(iv) Considerably reduces the capacity for growth of banded funding total as most applications 
are for Band 3 at present 

(v) Most decision Decision-making is as close to the pupil as possible which makes its use 
highly flexible if pupil needs change 

83



 4

(vi) Reflects most closely the system that many other LAs use 

Disadvantages:   

(i) There is still a need for a panel but for fewer cases. 

(ii) It is largely formula driven and so is a proxy measure of need rather than reflecting actual 
need 

(iii) Removes the ‘external view’ to verify the level of resourcing for each pupil except for a 
very few pupils.  The accuracy of the meeting need with the correct level of resource for most 
pupils depends upon the level of SEN knowledge within the school. 

(iv) Budgetary pressures in a school might mean that delegated funding for SEN is diverted to 
cover general staffing or other pressures. Accountability for delegated SEN funding is more 
difficult than where it is attributed for use with individual pupils. 

(v) Might result in more applications than previously for Band 4 once band 3 is removed. It 
may introduce a degree of perverse incentive. 

Option 3 - Delegate all of the funding for Band 3 but leave the full amount for Band 4. 

Advantages:   

(i) Provides greater protection for small schools in relation to the most complex pupils 

(ii) Reasonably Transparent – all schools can see what the majority of what others are 
receiving from the start and there would be a single banded funding boundary at a high 
threshold for each type of need. 

(ii) Removes much of the bureaucracy of the application process 

(iii) Removes the need to use specialist services to verify levels of need because children of 
this level of need should already be well known to services 

(iv) Reduces much of the capacity for growth of banded funding total  

(v) Most decision Decision-making is as close to the pupil as possible which makes its use 
highly flexible if pupil needs change 

Disadvantages:   

(i) There is still a need for a panel. 

(ii) It is largely formula driven and so is a proxy measure of need rather than reflecting actual 
need 

(iii) Removes the ‘external view’ to verify the level of resourcing for each pupil except for a 
very few pupils.  The accuracy of the meeting need with the correct level of resource for most 
pupils depends upon the level of SEN knowledge within the school. 

(iv) Budgetary pressures in a school might mean that delegated funding for SEN is diverted to 
cover general staffing or other pressures. Accountability for delegated SEN funding is more 
difficult than where it is attributed for use with individual pupils. 

(v) Might result in more applications than previously for Band 4 once band 3 is removed.  It 

84



 5

introduces a greater perverse incentive because it offers the full amount, not just a top-up 

Option 4 - Leave the present system of Banded Funding in place. 

Advantages:   

(i) There is a considerable support for small schools if they have pupils with higher levels of 
need. 

(ii) It reflects actual need on an individual basis for moderate and complex needs 

(iv) Budgetary pressures in a school have a lesser impact on Band 3 and 4 pupils. 

(v) Pressure for statements has been reduced by the knowledge that there is a specified level 
of funding. 

Disadvantages:   

(i) Transparency – Schools cannot see how many applications other schools are making. 

(ii) Requires the bureaucracy of the application process and the need for a panel 

(iii) Requires the use of considerable and growing resource in the form of specialist services to 
confirm the school view of the level of need 

(iv) Allows unlimited growth of banded funding total putting great pressure on the DSG budget 

(v) Decision-making is at LA level where the pupil is not known 

(vi) Provides a clear perverse incentive to apply for funding 

Option 5 - Leave the present system of Banded Funding in place but limit the number of 
allocations for each band or limit the total budget and change to a top up approach as 
highlighted used in most other authorities  

Advantages and disadvantages as for 4. except: 

Advantage over 4.- It would be possible to cap the total amount each month or each year and 
hence budget for this accurately. 

Disadvantage compared to Option 4. – It would create a waiting list situation with pupils having 
to wait until the start of the new month or year for funding to become available. 

 

Option 6 -  Leave the present system of Banded Funding in place but reduce the value of 
allocations for each band  

Advantages and disadvantages as for 4. except: 

Advantage over Option 4.- It would be possible to seek to predict the percentage increase in 
allocations using the trend information from the previous years and then to reduce the value of 
each allocation by the same percentage.  This should ensure that the budget does not to 
overspend (assuming the predictions of growth are accurate).   

Disadvantage compared to Option 4. – The current value of the awards was based upon an 

85



 6

amount of support linked to need, i.e. Band 4 gave full-time support due to the high level of 
need.  If the value of the Band 4 allocation was reduced, it would not be possible to provide 
the same level of support unless there was also an additional contribution from the school. 

 

Reasons for Recommendations 

2 The reasons for recommending the options on page 1 of this report are: 

• The continuing increase in the number and total cost of the banded funding allocations can 
only be sustained at the expense of the rest of the schools.  The SEN proportion of the overall 
education budget is already out of step with other local areas.  The evidence for this is given in 
Appendix A. In addition, the current system does not meet the principle of giving schools the 
greatest delegated resource possible to enable need to be met as early as possible. For these 
reasons, the status quo (option 4) is not considered a viable option. 

• It is felt that secondary schools have sufficiently large budgets to be able absorb the costs 
associated with the variability in the number of pupils with moderately complex needs.  The 
fully delegated option (Option 1) therefore has the advantages outweighing the disadvantages 
for the secondary schools.   

• For the smaller primary schools, there is a risk that one or more pupils with high levels of need 
could put an unacceptable pressure on the budget.  However, it is felt that it should only be 
those pupils with the highest level of need (Band 4) rather than the relatively high number now 
being identified at Band 3.  It is also felt that this should only be the ‘top-up’ funding above the 
Level 3.  Using this as the cut-off is much more in keeping with other local areas and for those 
LAs, there has not been the same level of budget pressure as in Herefordshire.  Having fewer 
requests (i.e., only the Band 4) coming forward would limit the requirements for decision-
making by the banded funding panel, as well as the need to send in evidenced requests by 
schools.  For all of these reasons, it is recommended that Option 2 is taken forward. 

• Head teachers of Herefordshire’s special schools had previously expressed concern about the 
admission pattern of pupils to their schools and the ability of the funding system to respond to 
this.  This was raised in a previous paper to Schools Forum (May 2010).  Having looked at 
possible changes to the funding of special schools, the decision was taken to maintain the 
current system with some minor amendment of the timing of the allocation to schools.  This 
change did not have any budget implication. 

• There has been an increase in the number of children requiring special school places.  The 
number of places has increased from 180 in 2005 to 220 in 2010 (a 22% increase in 6 years).  
It should be noted that the criteria for entry to our special schools have not changed over this 
period and that the overall background population has actually decreased.  Some of this 
increase is thought to be related to better survival rates for premature or severely disabled 
children, along with increases in the incidence of foetal alcohol syndrome.  National research 
has shown an increase in these types of complex need but not at a level to fully account for 
the growth in the Herefordshire special school population.  This growth in pupil numbers is 
also providing a significant additional budget pressure.  It is recommended that we monitor the 
special school population to determine the reasons for any increase in numbers.  It is difficult 
to take action until the reasons are fully understood.  

• The expenditure through the Complex Needs Solutions panel is predominantly made up of 
high cost out of county placements.  Although the increase in the number of children and 
young people placed is small, the average annual cost of the placements is approximately 
£160k per year for the duration of the placement.  In recognition of the urgency of addressing 

86



 7

the growth in the expenditure in this area, a specific project has been established by the 
Women, Children and Families Commissioning Board of the Herefordshire Public Services.  

Introduction and Background 

3 The information on Banded funding, delegation and Special School funding given in the 
Schools Forum Paper from May 2010 remains relevant.  Appendix A of this paper gives the 
updated position.   

Key Considerations 

4 The information given in the May 2010 Schools Forum paper remains relevant.  Any SEN 
funding system needs to meet the criteria that that are described in Appendix C of the May 
2010 paper (also attached as Appendix B of this paper).  Any changes made to the SEN 
funding system need to be seen to be an improvement as measured against those criteria.  
Accountability remains a key issue in relation to funding for SEN.  This is particularly the case 
in relation to funding delegated via a formula.   

 
Community Impact 
 
5 A number of geographical clusters are working together with funding delegated for Learning 

and Behaviour support. The development of an extended pooled system of resource sharing 
for SEN in a given area should be explored further in order to minimise the variability in the 
level of need in individual schools.  The LA SEN and Equalities Adviser is exploring the 
possibilities for clusters of schools that would like to explore this option. 

 
Financial Implications 

6 The intention would be to provide a funding system that is cost-neutral, that would remove any 
perverse incentives, would increase flexibility for schools and groups of schools and would 
therefore contain costs unless there was clear evidence of changes in the pattern of need that 
would demand changes in funding.   

 

Legal Implications 

7 Any changes to the SEN funding system need to be within the current regulations relating to 
Local financial management. 

Risk Management 

8 There is a risk that any revision to the current system will have further unintended 
consequences that distort the system.  This can be mitigated by ensuring that the monitoring 
systems are responsive to trends and that action can be taken to adjust the system. 

9 There is an additional risk of ‘turbulence’ in the system caused by changes to the funding 
system.  The level of risk will depend upon which of the options are selected.  If, once the 
financial modelling of the selected options has been carried out, there is found to be a 
significant risk of turbulence, transitional arrangements can be put in place.  Advice will be 
sought from the Schools Finance Manager at the appropriate stage. 

10 The risk of not preparing options to review the system is that the system might be undermined 
by a lack of confidence in it and that the costs for SEN might continue to rise in a way that is 

87



 8

out of proportion to the budget available for all children.  Given the growth in the numbers of 
children with banded funding on statements, this risk can partly be mitigated by improving the 
monitoring of the Annual Review of Statement in order to ensure that those in receipt of Band 
3 and 4 funding continue to have that level of need. 

Consultees 

Inclusion Partnership Co-ordinators 

Herefordshire Carers Group 

Relevant LA Officers 

A sample of Herefordshire’s Headteachers 

Appendices 

Appendix A - A Summary of SEN Funding Trends 2011 

Appendix B - Principles for AEN/SEN Funding (From Marsh; 2004) 

Background Papers 

• Resourcing Additional and Special Educational Needs in Wales (Marsh; 2004)  

• The Management of SEN Expenditure (DfES; 2004) 

• SEN Expenditure Trends Report by Managers of SEN and Finance 
(Herefordshire Schools Forum 10th October 2007) 

• Proposal to review SEN/AEN funding  
(Herefordshire Schools Forum 17th May 2010) 

 

88



 1

 
 
Appendix A – Trends in SEN Expenditure 
 
Schools Budget 2012/13 
 
Similar sized budget cuts of £1m or more are likely in 2012/13 due to 
continued falling rolls and continued rising SEN costs.  
 
Developing proposals to contain SEN expenditure will be very important in 
shaping the 2012/13 budget. The SEN expenditure trends reported to Schools 
Forum in October 2007 (which formed the basis for the delegation of Bands 1 
& 2) has been updated and although this work needs to be finalised – it 
suggests the following after adjusting for inflation  
 
Indicative draft SEN trends 2000-2010 (to be finalised) 
  
2000/01 price 
base 

2000/01 2006/07 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Primary SEN 
Banding (or 
equivalent) 

1,232 1,583 1,713 1,715 1,790 1,927 

Secondary 
SEN Banding 
(or equivalent)  

998 1,220 1,276 1,221 1,459 1,492 

SEN % share 
of Education 
Budget 

3.4% 3.5% 3.7% 4.2% 4.7% 5.0% 

Special School 
Budgets 

1,541 2,422    3,012 

Complex 
Needs  DSG 
share only  

509 983    1,473 
 

Total SEN 
spend 

4,280 6,208    7,904 

Increase in 
spend above 
inflation 

 +45%    +85% 

% change in 
primary pupil 
numbers since 
2000 

 -10%    -14% 

% change in 
secondary 
pupil numbers 
since 2000 

 +4%    -1% 

 
To summarise since April 2006 and after adjusting for inflation an additional 
£1.7m (at 06/07 spend base) or £1.9m at (10/11 spend base) is being spent 
on SEN, an increase of +27% from a DSG budget that has reduced because 
of falling pupil numbers by -4.5% since 2006 (and -8.4% since 2000).  

89



 2

 
The Complex Needs budget (CNS Section 75 joint budget) will rise by £482k 
in 11/12 and a further £153k in 12/13 (DSG share only). 
 
Since 2000 the increase in spend (above inflation) is 85% whilst primary 
numbers have reduced by -14% and high schools by -1%.  
 
The impact of banded funding shows clearly in the growth since 2006. 
 
More work still needs to be completed however the analysis provides useful 
background to the rising costs of SEN and increasing budget difficulties in 
schools.  Rises in SEN expenditure have to be met from DSG and result in 
less funding to schools through the LMS formula. 
 
This analysis will be essential in considering the budget challenges going 
forward.  
 
2.  Further analysis of SEN Expenditure on Banded Funding 
 
Key points: 
 
• Banded Funding without Statements via Banded Funding Panel.  Between 

2006-10 there was evidence of an increase in the number of allocations via 
the Banded Funding Panel at Band Level 3 or 4. 

 
 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 
Band 3 23 33 32 35 62 
Band 4 9 12 14 15 19 

 
 

90



 3

 

91



 4

 

92



 5

 

93



 6

• Banded Funding with Statements There has been a tripling of the number of 
Statements with Level 3 or 4 funding since 2005 with year on year increase; 
the greatest increase has been in the number of Level 4 allocations. Over a 
quarter of all Statements now have Level 3 or 4 funding.  It needs to be noted 
that Herefordshire has a lower overall rate of statementing for the 0-19 
population compared to nationally (1.42% compared to 1.85%).   

 
Year Level 3 Level 4 Total 
2005 36 15 51 
2006 47 27 74 
2007 66 55 121 
2008 61 60 121 
2009 79 88 177 

 
In 2010/11 there were an additional 51 Band 3 and 37 Band 4 levels of funding 
incorporated into statements. 
 
• Statutory Assessment and Statement: Apart from 2007/08, there has been a 

year on year increase in requests for Statutory Assessment and an increase 
in the number of Statements issued. 

 
  DECISION OUTCOME 
Financial Year Requests for 

Statutory 
Assessment 

Assess Don’t 
Assess 

Statements 
Issued 

NiL 
issued 

2006/07 51 38 13 34 4 
2007/ 08 58 26 32 25 1 
2008/09 90 53 37 44 7 

2009/2010 102 65  29  43  1 
2010/11 121 82 39 41 1 

 
 
L Knight based on information supplied by M Green, J Riley and E Edwards 
 
 

94



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Les Knight – Head of Additional Needs on (01432) 261724 (lknight1@herefordshire.gov.uk)  
 

Appendix B -  Principles for AEN/SEN Funding (From Marsh; 2004) 
 
A range of principles or criteria may be used for the design and evaluation of 
a funding formula or scheme [Marsh, 2003a].  The principles and associated 
key questions need to be judged against the main policy objectives of the LEA 
and the intended purpose[s] of the funding.  The principles have been drawn 
from three sources: Ross [1983], Levacic [1995]; Ross and Levacic [1999].  
The key questions have been drawn from the 2001 DfES guidance to LEAs 
on the distribution of resources to support inclusion [DfES, 2001]. 
 
a. Simplicity.  Is the funding scheme easy to understand and does it have 

low administrative costs both at LEA and school level? 
b. Equity.  Are the levels of resources for different SEN Funding Blocks 

judged to be fair?  Is there fair and equal treatment for all schools and 
does the funding scheme promote inclusive practice?  Should the same 
amount of money [unit value] be allocated to each pupil irrespective of the 
nature or degree of their need? 

c. Effectiveness and Standards.  How well does the funding scheme meet 
the LEA’s policy objectives?  Are monitoring arrangements in place for 
pupil outcomes of pupils with SEN? 

d. Responsiveness to Needs.  Is the funding scheme flexible enough to 
make provision for children with complex needs?  Are children with 
additional educational needs supported and not just those who experience 
special educational needs?  Are the requirements of statements met? 

e. Efficiency/Value for Money.  Does the funding scheme adhere to the 
principles of whole school funding to ensure maximum effect?  Is early 
identification supported with appropriate intervention strategies?  Are 
perverse incentives avoided?  Does the scheme in general offer value for 
money? 

f. Cost Containment.  Are resources distributed to meet the additional and 
special educational needs of children in mainstream settings, irrespective 
of whether or not a statement is held? 

g. Accountability.  Are the relative roles, duties and expectations of schools 
and LEAs clearly outlined?  Are arrangements included to monitor the use 
of resources? 

h. Transparency.  Is the funding scheme readily understood by schools, 
governing bodies and parents?  Are schools aware of the amount received 
for pupils with additional and special educational needs and of the 
intended purpose of the funding?  Has there been open dialogue between 
stakeholders and the LEA? 

i. Stability of Funding.  Are there major shifts in funding between schools? 
j. Willingness to Accept Change.  Has the funding scheme been 

developed in partnership with schools and other relevant stakeholders?  
Are schools willing to change?  Has a clear plan for transitional 
arrangements been formulated? 

 

95



96



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Chris Baird, Assistant Director, People Services (01432) 260 264 

  

$13ntukal.doc 22/02/10 

MEETING: SCHOOLS FORUM 

DATE: 10 JUNE 2011 

TITLE OF REPORT: UPDATE ON SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENTS 

REPORT BY:  Assistant Director: Planning, Performance & 
Development 

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Purpose 

To provide an update to Schools Forum on service level agreements 

Recommendation 

 THAT: 

  Schools Forum comment on any aspects of the developments that were 
put in place for 2011/12, including comments that can lead to 
improvements for 2012/13. 

Key Points Summary 

• Herefordshire has developed its approach to service level agreements (SLAs) over the past two 
years.  The pace of development was accelerated for 2011/12.  Services from the Council 
include services provided by the new Shared Services Partnership, as well as services 
contained within the People Services Directorate, Children Services.  Schools were presented 
with a wider range of services that they could choose to purchase, and revised costs. 

• The developments in national government policy, including the Academies Act 2010 have built 
upon the existing freedoms of schools to directly manage and purchase services that cover 
statutory responsibilities and enhance teaching and learning.  The developing approach to SLAs 
in Herefordshire has placed the relationship with schools and the purchase of services in this 
context.  Services are looking to increase quality, flexibility and reduce costs.  These aims will 
be aided by schools entering into formal collaborative arrangements that enable costs to be 
reduced. 

• The provision of services will change in response to the buying back by schools and other 
purchasers.  There will also be the development of new services to meet changing demand and 
national and local priorities. 

• The processes surrounding SLAs will be built upon and improved for 2012/13. 

AGENDA ITEM 15

97



 

 

Alternative Options 

1 None applicable. 

Reasons for Recommendations 

2 This meeting of schools forum in June provides a timely opportunity to influence the 
arrangements for 2012/13 and also review the position for 2011/12. 

Introduction and Background 

3 The development of SLAs in Herefordshire has gathered pace and been put on a much more 
professional footing.  This was done to enable schools to have a greater understanding of the 
services which are available and to recognise the move to all schools acting as commissioners 
of services.  The local authority has worked with schools to develop the approach in 
Herefordshire, and responded to school views throughout the process for 2011/12.  This work 
is set to continue for 2012/13. 

Key Considerations 

4 Revised arrangements were put in place for 2011/12 and were broadly welcomed.  These 
included: 

• Revised materials for schools to review service specifications, content and costs 

• A market place event to enable schools to ask questions of services, all in one place. 

• Visits to individual schools to discuss the range of services 

• Individual service responses to school and groups of schools queries 

5 Schools were provided with information and a return form.  The results of the buy back in 
terms of number of schools are indicated in Appendix A.  This was the information received as 
at 19 May 2011 and at the time of writing 12 responses were still to be received.  There is a 
variation in the buy back of services, and some services have been established to offer spot 
purchase arrangements rather than a commitment for a whole year. 

6 Some schools wanted to explore joint purchase arrangements across a number of schools, 
discounts, and specified services.  The local authority is at an early stage in developing this 
approach on a systematic basis.  Local school formal collaborative arrangements can enable 
costs to be lowered by the local authority.  For example, dealing with one point of delivery of a 
service for a number of schools would enable costs to be reduced, but dealing with the same 
number of contacts, meetings and delivery sessions for the individual schools across one 
group does not enable savings to be achieved.  It is intended that the approach is developed 
for 2012/13 to enable savings to be achieved for groups of schools and schools can support 
this development by clearly identifying how work can be streamlined across groups of schools, 
though becoming better at specifying their requirements.   

7 There are improvements that need to be made to the process.  Schools were presented with 
information at a late stage in the process and this should be avoided in future.  In part this was 
due to the changing picture at a national level in terms of funding and the responsibilities of 
local authorities.  However, it also reflected the information received regarding insurance 
claims for 2010/11 and the subsequent need to revise costs and information for schools.  In 
addition, late changes reflected the position of some services in terms of revising costs and 

98



 

 

arrangements.  This included the library service, once clarification was given on the position of 
funding and delegation.  It would have been more helpful to the Council and to schools to have 
the information earlier and for this information not to change. 

8 Some schools have suggested that the local authority should act as a broker for services, 
using the size of the local authority and its ability to represent a number of partners including 
schools to achieve value for money.  This was discussed at the Schools Strategic Planning 
Group as part of an approach to the development of educational provision in Herefordshire 
using the Rising to the Challenge approach.  This kind of approach could be used in relation to 
insurance, for example, and is something that will be investigated in the coming weeks for 
2012/13 SLAs. 

Community Impact 

9 The services that schools purchase enable them to fulfil their statutory duties and enhance the 
teaching and learning experiences within their schools, benefiting local communities. 

Financial Implications 

10 Under the scheme of delegation schools have the ability to purchase a range of services, not 
all of them statutory.  It is up to schools how they use their resources, within the requirements 
for balanced budgets and fulfilling legal and statutory responsibilities.  The local authority has 
an underlying aim to provide highly valued, locally delivered, cost effective services that are 
competitive on the open market. 

11 If sufficient schools do not buy back services, then the local authority would not be able to 
supply these services.  Work is taking place to review the position of some services and 
arrangements will be put in place to ensure costs are covered whilst at the same time services 
are delivered to the schools that have bought them back, and the statutory functions of the 
local authority are fulfilled. 

Legal Implications 

12 Schools and the local authority must as a minimum ensure that statutory responsibilities are 
met.  For schools this can be achieved either by purchasing services from the local authority 
or from other providers. 

Risk Management 

13 Services offered through service level agreements offer direct cover for risk also indirectly, for 
example legal services.  In a number of areas schools must have appropriate services in 
place, whether they be provided by the local authority or not.  Governors should assure 
themselves that they are appropriately covered in terms of risk. 

14 The local authority is working to offer high quality and valued services to schools, so that 
services are viable to run across the range of schools requiring them.  Judgements will have to 
be made whether some services continue, are reshaped, or prices alter for the future and the 
local authority wishes to involve schools in the shaping of this, ideally by having a working 
group of representative heads to develop services. 

Consultees 

15 Some schools have provided feedback on the work regarding SLAs for 2011/12 and these 
have been broadly reflected in this report. 

99



 

 

Appendices 

16 Appendix A indicates the level of buy back by type of school, by service as at 19 May 2011. 

Background Papers 

N/A 

100



Summary of number of schools buying services for 2011/12 Appendix A

12 schools and settings still to return the SLA forms
Some of these services operate a spot purchase option, for example Professional Development, Targetted Youth Support

4

1

3

42

38

ICT - Technical Support (3 weekly visits) 1

ICT - Technical Support (bi weekly visits) 5

ICT Curriculum VLE 20

Curriculum ICT Hands on Support 41

SIMS FMS 21

ICT - SIMS Application Support* 87

ICT - Technical Support (weekly visits) 1

SIMS Lesson Monitor & Dinner Money 5

22

Schools' Finance Bank Account & VAT 8

ICT - Broadband Services* 90

Human Resources - Staffing & Appointments 91

Human Resources - CRB Service 42

91

Creditor Payments 76

Human Resources - Management & Advice 88

Schools' Finance Support - Enhanced 2 30

Schools' Finance Support - Core 34

Schools' Finance Support - Enhanced 1

Governor Development Services

Professional Development Services 

Support for NQT - Core 9

Insurance Services - Health & Safety

Service
Number of 

Schools Buying in 
Service

Additional Needs (including EAL) 73

Payroll

Educational Welfare

Extended Services

Targeting Mental Health

Targeting Youth Support

Triple P Parenting

75

Legal Services 58

23

3

Facilities Management 75

Academy Admissions 5

Occupational Health 88

Buildings Maintenance 83

Schools' Library Service 65

101



102



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Les Knight – Head of Additional Needs on (01432) 261724 (lknight1@herefordshire.gov.uk)  
  

  

MEETING: SCHOOLS FORUM 

DATE: 10 JUNE 2011 

TITLE OF REPORT: FUNDING FOLLOWING THE STUDENT FROM 
PUPIL REFERRAL UNITS (PRUS) 

REPORT BY:  Head of Additional Needs 

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Purpose 

To agree on a mechanism to allow ‘funding to follow the student’ when transferring to a different 
school after being on the roll of a PRU.  

Recommendations 

THAT Schools Forum: 

a. confirms its endorsement of the principle that funding will follow a student to their new 
school if they are permanently excluded and are admitted to a different Herefordshire 
secondary school or the school is in receipt of a pupil through the managed moves 
programme. This would apply to all secondary schools including academies. 

b. supports the local authority collection of the funding from the pupil’s former school in 
order to fund the PRU provision as agreed by the Schools Forum in March 2011 and, 
where the pupil is allocated a place on the roll of a different school, the transference by 
the LA of the same level of funding to the receiving school.   

Key Points Summary 

• Where it is appropriate, it is desirable that students who are permanently excluded or need to 
move to a PRU for other reasons are offered a second chance at a different secondary school.  
For some of these students, being offered this chance is the catalyst to making a positive 
change to their lives.   

• This chance might be offered prior to the student moving to a PRU or after a period of 
attendance at a PRU, when it is judged that they are likely to have the might have the greatest 
chance of a successful re-integration into a different school. 

• The principle proposed is that finance should follow the student so that appropriate support 
can be put in place in a timely manner, and the “receiving school is not disadvantaged. 

AGENDA ITEM 16

103



 2

• Although the county’s schools work in partnership and see this as part of their collective 
responsibility to the young people of Herefordshire, requests to take students are not 
necessarily evenly spread across all schools. 

• The aim of the proposal is to reduce the financial burden to those schools receiving to offer 
pupils that second chance.  Therefore, the funding collected from the pupil’s former school to 
support the PRU provision would be ‘passported’ to a pupil’s new school from the point at 
which they are placed on the roll of the new school until the end of Year 11. 

• The proposal is that this applies to all secondary schools including academies. 

Alternative Options  

Should the recommendations on the first page of this report not be supported, the following options 
could be considered: 

1. No additional financial support would be available for schools receiving students and schools 
continue to be expected to fund the necessary support from their existing delegated budget. 

2. The former school is only required to fund the £3000 per annum for a limited period after the 
transfer to the new school, e.g. for 12 months or 24 months after the pupil transfers to the new 
school. 

3. The same charging scheme could also be introduced for primary pupils subject to managed 
moves in order to prevent permanent exclusion. 

Reasons for Recommendations 

4. It is in the best interests of some students to be offered a fresh start at a new secondary school if 
they are permanently excluded or are transferred because they are close to the point of 
permanent exclusion. 

5. For the schools receiving these students, the current arrangements create a financial burden for a 
period of time, in addition to the time taken to address the pastoral needs of vulnerable students.   

6. Requests to support students in this way are not necessarily evenly spread across all schools due 
to the distribution of schools geographically and the distribution of vacant places within the school 
system.  This means that some schools might be asked to accept more students than others.  The 
transfer of the funding offers those schools the resource to support students who transfer to them 
in this way. 

Introduction and Background 

7. This paper forms a supplement to the papers on the funding of PRUs presented at the July 2010, 
January 2011 and March 2011 Schools Forum meetings and the background given in those 
papers remains relevant. 

8. At the March 2011 meeting, a model to fund the statutory 25 hours of provision for PRU pupils 
was arrived at. This required that a charge of £3,000 per PRU place per year would be made to 
secondary schools, as from April 2011.  This charge will be proportionate to the remainder of the 
financial year. 

9. The charge also applies to intervention places on a pro-rata basis. 

10. In April 2011, the Home and Hospital Teaching Team became the PRU for medical short stay 

104



 3

provision.  The charges do not apply to PRU pupils entering the medical short stay provision as 
this is funded directly through DSG. . 

11. A further recommendation of the same meeting was in support of the principle that ‘funding should 
follow the student’ where a pupil can be offered a fresh start at a new secondary school.  This 
recommendation is re-stated in Recommendation (a). above. 

Key Considerations 

12. The number of permanent exclusions in Herefordshire is low compared to other local areas and 
was reduced from 23 pupils in 2006/7 to 17 pupils in 2007/8 and has remained at 18 pupils since 
then. 

 
13. Herefordshire has a successful ‘managed moves’ programme with the Social Inclusion Officer 

working closely with Schools, PRUs and parents/carers.  In this way, there have been no 
permanent exclusions of primary pupils over the past three years. 

 
14.   The LA is well placed to transfer funding to a pupil’s new school as it will be collecting the same 

amounts for PRU placement. 
 
Community Impact 
 
15. Pupils who are able to successfully re-integrate into another local secondary school are more 

likely to maintain greater contact with their peers than if they transfer to a PRU. 

Financial Implications 

16. There would be a small impact on individual school budgets due to the transference of the funding 
as described. 

17. There would be a reduced demand for places at PRUs (and therefore cost to DSG) if more pupils 
were able to reintegrate.  PRUs are intended to be short stay schools.  In practice, a significant 
proportion of pupils are currently re-integrated. 

Legal Implications 

18. None known 

Risk Management 

19. There is a risk that the responsibility for excluded pupils might change in legislation, guidance and 
regulation that follows the Education Bill and that local arrangements might need to change to 
reflect this. 

Consultees  

PRU Headteachers 

BESD Strategy Group 

Relevant LA Officers 

Head teachers at HASH 

105



 4

Executive head for BESD and Head of Brookfield Special School and Specialist College 

Appendices 

None 
 

Background Papers 

Children & Young People’s Directorate Leadership Team – RADAR - Permanent and Fixed Period 
Exclusions June 2010 

School-based Intervention Project – Herefordshire 2009-11 

Herefordshire Schools Forum Tuesday 23 February 2010 Agenda Reports Pack 

Herefordshire Schools Forum Tuesday 9th July 2010 Agenda Reports Pack 

Herefordshire Schools Forum Tuesday 31st January 2011 Agenda Reports Pack 

Herefordshire Schools Forum 2nd March 2011 Agenda Reports Pack 

Government White Paper ‘The Importance of Teaching’ (DfE;2010) Chapter 3 

 

 

106



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Erica Hermon, Resilience Team Manager on (01432) 261906 

  

$fdjcxn4n.doc 22/02/10 

MEETING: HEREFORDSHIRE SCHOOLS’ FORUM 

DATE: 10 JUNE 2011 

TITLE OF REPORT: STATEMENT OF INTENT  

HEALTH & SAFETY AUDIT OF SCHOOLS 

REPORT BY:  Resilience Team Manager (Erica Hermon) 

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Purpose 

To advise the Herefordshire Schools’ Forum of the Herefordshire Council Resilience Team’s intent to 
conduct schools’ Health & Safety audits and inspections with effect from 1 Sep 2011.   

Recommendations 

THAT:   Members of the Herefordshire Schools’ Forum are invited to note that:  

(a) Teacher Trade Union Safety Representatives continue to provide schools’ Health 
& Safety audit services on behalf of Herefordshire Council, as per current 
arrangements, until 1 September 2011; 

 
(b) Herefordshire Council (Resilience Team) will conduct schools’ audits and 

inspections with effect from 1 Sep 2011; 
 
(c) Coordinated by Herefordshire Council, joint Health & Safety audits/inspections 

of schools by Herefordshire Council and Trade Union Safety Representatives will 
be encouraged;   
 

(d) Post Sep 2011, Teacher Trade Union Safety Representatives will continue with 
their statutory responsibilities but only in the sites where they have membership 
and are employed. 

 
Key Points Summary 

• The Local Authority is responsible for conducting annual Health & Safety audits of schools; the 
Health & Safety Executive’s (HSE’s) guidance (HSG65 Successful Health & Safety 
Management) sets out the best practice approach.   

• That said, staff limitations within Herefordshire Council have led to Trade Union 
Representatives being tasked with conducting these audits, which take considerable time to 
undertake and process.   

AGENDA ITEM 17

107



• Although the Council’s Health & Safety Officer researches and/or gives subsequent advice, 
the current process raises the concern that non-liability audits/advice are being provided to 
schools by Trade Union Safety Representative.   

Alternative Options 

1 There are no Alternative Options.  

Reasons for Recommendations 

2 Under the Health & Safety at Work Act 1974 and The Management of Health & Safety at Work 
Regulations 1999, the Local Authority is responsible for conducting suitable and sufficient 
Health & Safety audits of schools. The best practice approach requires Herefordshire Council 
to prove that systems achieve parity or exceed the guidance in HSG65 Successful Health & 
Safety Management.   

Introduction and Background 

3 Staff limitations within Herefordshire Council have led to Teacher Trade Union 
Representatives being tasked with conducting schools’ Health & Safety audits on behalf of the 
Local Authority.  Consequently, Teacher Trade Union Safety Representatives have been 
employed as ‘casual’ and paid through the XL supply teacher casual system.   

 
4. The statutory responsibilities and functions of Trade Union-nominated Safety Representatives’ 

are detailed in Health & Safety at Work Act 1974 (Section 2(4)) and Safety Representatives 
and Safety Committees Regulations 1977 (Regulation 4(1)).  Each recognised Teacher Trade 
Union can appoint a Safety Representative from amongst its employee members, under 
Safety Representatives and Safety Committees Regulations 1977, Regulation 3.  Under 
Regulation 3(3), a person shall cease to be a Safety Representative if he/she ceases to be an 
employee.  A Safety Representative needs to be employed at one of our workplaces/Schools, 
and should have 2 years experience minimum at their workplace for their present employer, or 
other schools.   

 
5. In summary, Trade Union Safety Representatives have a statutory right to carry out the 

following duties on a quarterly basis:   
 

a. Health & Safety training; 
 
b. Investigating Health & Safety complaints from their member employees; 
 
c. Negotiating with employers on aspects of Health & Safety; 
 
d. Carrying out workplace inspections, covering the workplace, areas of where 

accidents have occurred and a site inspection. 
 
e. Reviewing employer’s Health & Safety documents and manuals; 
 
f. Meeting with Health & Safety inspectors and environmental health officers; 
 
g. Attending safety committee meetings – Corporate Health & Safety Committee or 

Schools Health & Safety Group for specific agenda items.   
 
h. Consulting with their members on aspects relating to Health & Safety. 

 

108



6. Where employers recognise multiple unions, each unions’ Safety Representative has the right 
to paid time off1 for the purpose of carrying out the functions detailed in Para 5 (above), on 
behalf of their union and the members they represent.   Under Safety Representatives and 
Safety Committees Regulations 1977 (Regulation 5), each Safety Representative has a right 
to inspect the workplace every 3 months in order to investigate potential hazards, dangerous 
occurrences, safety concerns raised by members and to obtain Health & Safety information 
from the school where that trade union has membership. The TUC guidance to Safety 
Representatives gives an expectation that a programme of workplace inspections is drawn up 
in consultation with employers and that joint inspections with other union Safety 
Representatives should be the norm.  

  
Key Considerations 

7 Although the Council’s Health & Safety Officer researches and/or gives subsequent advice, 
the current process raises the concern that non-liability audits/advice are being provided to 
schools by Teacher Trade Union Safety Representatives.  Safety Representatives and Safety 
Committees Regulations 1977, Regulation 4 states that Safety Representatives cannot be 
held liable for their advice.    Further, as relayed at the Schools’ Forum on 1 Mar 2011, Head 
Teachers have expressed concern and requested a protocol that allows them to refuse a 
Teacher Trade Union Safety Representative on their site, should they consider Trade Union 
involvement inappropriate.   

 
Community Impact 

8. Greater significance is being placed on promoting proactively a cultural change for Health & 
Safety within the organisation, and ensuring that the appropriate policies and guidance 
hierarchies are available to managers and employees.   To that end, the following 
improvements are proposed for schools’ accident reporting and audits: 
 
a. Audit Process.     The cost and suitability of an ‘off the shelf’ automated accident 

reporting tool is being scoped and would be funded by Herefordshire Council.  The tool 
would allow Head Teachers to submit Accident Forms on line which, in turn, would 
trigger the requisite response from the Herefordshire Council Health & Safety Officer.  
This tool would also provide dash board data, affording greater visibility of common 
trends, performance (including Health & Safety awareness) and ‘near miss’ reporting.  
Appropriate action can then be prioritised.   

 
b. Schools Self Assessment.     Herefordshire Council are intending to develop a Self 

Assessment Audit Template for completion by Schools on an annual basis and to a 
deadline; reflecting Government thinking on a 'lighter touch' for lower risk premises.  
This will allow Schools to score themselves, encouraging honest review of their Health 
& Safety measures/culture.  The Council’s audit would then be conducted, using the 
School’s own self assessment as the basis, to ensure that the Schools are scoring 
themselves appropriately.  Scores can be used to provide performance indicators, 
encouraging competition and embedding further a Health & Safety culture.       

Financial Implications 

9 Recruitment to 2 Health & Safety posts has been approved and can be resourced from within 
the existing Health & Safety budget.   

                                                

1 Under Reference C (Regulation 4(2)), Safety Representatives are entitled to paid time off to undertake duties 
in accordance with Regulation 4(1).   

109



Legal Implications 

10. Health & Safety at Work Act 1974; the Management of Health & Safety at Work Regulations 
1999; HSG65 Successful H&S Management; and, Safety Representatives and Safety 
Committees Regulations 1977. 

 
Risk Management 

11. Continued lack of engagement by Herefordshire Council could result in a serious Corporate 
Risk via Improvement Notice or other enforcement action from HSE.  The current process 
raises the concern that non-liability audits/advice are being provided to Schools by Trade 
Union Safety Representative.   

12. In order to allow effective delivery of the work programmes and enhancements to Health and 
Safety provision, recruitment of appropriately qualified2 staff is now taking place to resource 
the Resilience Team (in which Health & Safety now resides) appropriately.   

13. The Resilience Team Manager has developed specific objectives for Health & Safety staff to 
cover supporting activities; these also form the basis for Performance Appraisal and 
Development.  Progress on Resilience Team activities against priorities will be reported at 
least 6 monthly to the Assistant Director, or more frequently if required. 

Consultees 

14. Schools’ Forum Health & Safety Discussion dated 1 Apr 2011. 
 

Appendices 

15. None.  

                                                

2 Current Health and Safety National Diploma or equivalent; knowledge of statutory framework underpinning 
Health and Safety; and, able to demonstrate continued personal development and training in Health and Safety, 
such as membership of IOSH. 

110



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Pete Martens or Tim Brown, Democratic Services on (01432) 260248 
  

$n3tkxs2x.doc 22/02/10 

MEETING: HEREFORDSHIRE SCHOOLS FORUM 

DATE: 10 JUNE 2011 

TITLE OF REPORT: WORK PROGRAMME 

REPORT BY:  DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Purpose 

To consider the Forum’s work programme. 

Recommendation 

 THAT: the Work Programme be noted, subject to any comments the Forum wishes to 
make. 

 

Herefordshire Schools Forum – Work Programme 2010/11 

23 September 2011 1.30 pm Brockington 

• AEN/SEN Funding Review (approval of consultation paper) 

• Dedicated Schools Grant (Budget  and outturn) 

• School Funding Review - update  
• Education Act 2011 
• Pupil Referral Unit Funding 
• Workplan 2011/12 

• Dates of Meetings 
 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM 18

111



25 November 2011 1.30 pm Brockington (TO BE MOVED TO FIRST WEEK IN 
DECEMBER) 

• Outcome of AEN/SEN Funding Review Consultation 

• National School Funding Review - Update 

• Report of Budget Working Group 

• School Funding 12/13 – Draft Budgets 

• Report of Procurement Sub-Group 

• Workplan 2011/12 

• Dates of Meetings 
 

20 January 2012 9.30 am Brockington 

• National School Funding Review – update 

• Report of Budget Working Group 

• Workplan 2011/12 

• Dates of Meetings 
 

24 February 2012 9.30 am Brockington 

• Report of Budget Working Group 

• School Funding 2012/13 – Final Budgets 

• Schools Capital Investment Programme 

• National School Funding Review - update 

• Workplan 2011/12 

• Dates of Meetings 
 

23 March 2012 1.30 pm Brockington 

• National School Funding Review - Update 

• Workplan 2011/12 

• Dates of Meetings 
 

Background Papers 

• None identified. 

112


	Agenda
	
	7 MINUTES
	8 HEREFORDSHIRE SCHOOLS FORUM MEMBERSHIP
	Pages from Forum Regs 2010 extract v2
	Membership chart v6

	9 REPORT OF BUDGET WORKING GROUP - 6 MAY 2011
	10 CONSULTATION ON SCHOOL FUNDING REFORM
	[10a]National School Funding Reform - Appendix 1
	[10b]National School Funding Reform - Appendix 2 -Academies Funding Consultation Document

	11 SCHOOL STRATEGIC GROUP UPDATE
	12 SCHOOLS' CAPITAL INVESTMENT PROGRAMME
	13 SCHOOLS LIBRARY SERVICE OFFER 2011/2012
	14 Review of SEN Funding
	[14] Appendix A SEN Banded
	[14] Appendix B SEN Banded (2)

	15 update on service level agreements
	[15a]SLA10062011AppA

	16 Funding following the student from pupil referral units (PRUs)
	17 STATEMENT OF INTENT  - HEALTH & SAFETY AUDIT OF SCHOOLS
	18 WORK PROGRAMME

